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~ Submltted by the Committee on Accountab:ilty of Public Ofﬁcers and
\ \LInvesttgatlons (Blue R.fbbon) on OCT 13 Z(m L

.
N

{ution No. 518‘

" Re:  Proposed Senat‘g«Re
| Recommending its approval:. i

Sbonsor: Senator Teofisto TG Guingona I1I

MR. PRESIDENT:

and Teofisto “TG" Guingona III,“ gn itled:

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON
ACCOUNTABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICERS (BLUF RIBBON) TO
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CONDUCT AN INQUIRY, IN AID OF LEGISLATION, ON THE
ALLEGED ANOMALOUS AND TIRREGULAR ACQUISITION BY THE
PNP OF LIGHT OPERATIONAL HELICOPTERS IN 2009 FROM
MAPTRA, WITH THE W OF DETERMINING
WHETHER THE SAIA’J‘W ITES A. )

The Blue Ribbon Committee of the 15™ Congress conduc:ted six (6) heanngs

to mvestlgate, pursuant to Senate Resolution No. 518 by Senators Teoﬂ
Gumgona III and Panfilo Lacson, the alleged anomalous and irregular acquiSItson by
the Phillpplne Nat{onal Police (PNP) of Light Gperatlonal Helicopters: "in '069 from
Manila Aerospace Products Trading Corporation (MAPTRA) with: the
crafting ‘Iegliﬁs!ajfzii'f:
transparenc;;ﬂ"‘é{h,@ijggcguntapf ty in'go

d¥ m wew of
and promote

ccommendations for each
the PNP. This report is divided into

This Report h’dlSC_‘ 5€

stage in the acquisition of theus
six {(6) parts:

! July 28, 2011, August 2, 2011, August 11, 2011, August 22, 2011, August 25, 2011, and September
13, 2011,
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L. Ownership of the Used Helicopters sold to the PNP
II. Negotiation to Signing of the Supply Contract

I11.  Delivery, Inspection, and Payment of Contract Price
IV. Findings of the Commiittee
V.  Discussion of Lia
VL. Policy/Legislative Recommendations

INTRODUCTION

Several irregularities and violations of law were commltted by private
mdnwduals and public officers to ensure the approval and acceptance of two (2) used
hehcopters by the PNP. During the course of the mvesttgatlon of the Blue Ribbon
Commrttee it hecame obvious that several ofﬁcxals bia’cantly breached their’ duties to

accommodate this anomalous tran‘} action.

It became unavoidable to" the {Ingering questron' For such: obvnous
and blatant violations commntted did the officials of the Philippine Natlonai Police
fmancially benefit from this anomalous transactnon‘”?

Accordfng to the testimony of the supplier of the hehcopters Manna
Aerospace Proclucts Trading Corporation, none of the officials of the thpplne
Natnonal Pohce fmanoally benefitted from the sale, Mr, Hilario de Vera Presndent of
MAPTRA categorrcéﬂy satd on record;*

;SEN RECTQ May
ltong kontratahg

MR. DE VERA At

nagkapera. Wala po.

TSN, SNTUPAZ VI-2 August 2, 2011 12:42PM, p.6.
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Because the PNP officials themselves swore, under oath, that none of them
was ever pressured, intimidated or influenced by a higher authority within the PNP

or a powerful private individual, the assertlcn that these officials were acting under

duress cannot be gwen ment 3

However; these testrmonres must not cause death t() the allegations of
rrregulantres. In fact, these only further raise the questron If no ﬂnancaal benefit
was mcurred by lhe officials and if they acted voluntarily, why drd they nsk their jobs
and their proféssional careers to ensure that this contract will be approved and

awardedeven to an upqualified supplier?

'Because there was neither financial benefit nor force that characterized this
anomalous transaction, it can now be asked: Were these private mchvaduais and
public officials cooperating with another individual of significant stature, apable of
great influence, to ensure that the contract will be svgned and awarded, and ﬁnally
that the used helicopters will be accepted by the PNP?

1. OWNERSHIP of the USED HELICOPTERS SOLD to the PNP .
Jose Miguel Arroyo: Owner of the Used Helicopters Sold to the PNP

Whi!e documents showing ownership point to Lionair and/or MAE;TRA as the
owner of the hehcopters sold to the PNP, the Blue Rrbbon Commlttee finds several
pieces of documentary and testimomal ev:dence which when taken together,
support the ailegatlon of several witnesses that the real owner ‘was actually the
former First Gentleman Jose Mrguel Arraya (FG) Tcgether with their supporting
documents, the foHowmg are ccms:dered

* TSN. Caturla IV-1. July 28, 2011. 9:37 a.m. p. 8; JADela Cruz V-1. July 28, 2011. 9:47 A.M. pp. 1-5.
(General question were asked by the senators to the PNP on who ordered them to buy the helicopters
but only Ticman answered that nobody ordered him to buy the helicopters)
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A. Testimony of Archibald Po

B. Testimony of Hilario de Vera

C. Testimony of Editha Solano—Juguan

D. Testimony of Domingo Lazo -
E. Testimony of Claudio DS Gaspar, Jr_.-

F. Flight logs B L
G. Test:mony of Rowena del Rosario ’

At the heighf m‘”"T the Bl‘ue Ribbon investigation, Representativé Ignacio “lggy”
Arroyo released a statement to the media and made available a jgjdcument which
attempted to deny ownership of the helicopters sold to the PNP. Essentially, Mr.
Iggy Arroyd claims that for a period of time, these helicopters were simply leased
from Lionair, Inc. This Committee finds it proper to include a section, “0On -tbe claim
of Ignacio Arroyo: Discussing the Value of the Aircraft Fleet Service Agreement,
between Ignacio Arroyo of LTA Inc. and Renato Sia of LIONAIR, Inc.,” to d:scuss its
observations and reasons for ﬁndmg no value to the clalm of Iggy Arrayo.

A, TYestimony of Archibald F50 (Annexi-\)

Archibald Po is the owner of Lionair, Inc., @ company organized initially as a
service provider of helicopters and other aircrafts, and later, also as exdusive dealer
of Rohinson Helicopter Company in the Philippines.

Mr. Po testified that the former first gentleman initially wahted to lease
helicopters. from Lionair but because none were available, the, Iatter agreed to Mr.
Po's proposal that fwe (5) Robmscn hehmpters be purchased mstead

To facilitate the sale, $500,000 0{) was remftted iR favor of Robinson

Helicopter Company. A Copy. ﬂf the Fere;gn Teiégraphgc Transfer Application Form is
attached as Annex B. Lo ¢
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In order to ensure that the importation would be tax-free, FG proposed and
Mr. Po agreed that the transaction be done through Asian Spirit, one of Mr. Po's

companies at that time. Asian Spirit is a-log of Clark Export Processing Zone with

importation-related tax priviléges

Mr. Po stated that whiie the he!ncopters document Were' 'Ptially in the name

of Asian Spmt as ewner, FG also asked him to sign five {5) dee_;___ of,'sale where the
buyer’s name was Jeft in blank. Mr. Po, however, was never glven oples of such

deeds of sale

| ’-‘S]Qn']ﬁéutime in 2006, FG informed Mr. Po that he was selling the he:iitéf;;téﬁs for
US$350',-()Q‘0.00~ a price which the latter felt was “on .the high sice”.

. To facilitate the sale,. Mr. Po‘g"wuth the approval of FG, sold the hehcopters
from one of his companies, Astan” tntt another one of his companies, LEOJ’\BH‘ “Inc
(Annex C) Later on, to ensure the ,a HF FG’s used helicopters, Mr. Po pr epafed a
proposal.for Manila Aerospace Products T rading (MAPTRA) - an interested “buyer”
On this- matter, the Blue R:bbon Commfttee mvites the reader to pay dehberate

attenuon to the following facts:

1. It'is clear that MAPTRA was not a “buyer”‘ in the strictest sense‘i It vﬁés only
made to appear that MAPTRA bought the hehcopters because Mr Po did not

Phlhppmes
23. Finding the request redsbhable;"1 acceded, and we issue 2

certification, dated 4 August 2009, to that effect, a copy of which s
attached hereto and made integral part hereof as Annex “K”,
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24. On 23 November 2009, Lionair and MAFTRA signed and
executed the deed of absolute sale for the two (2) “PRE-
OWNED/USED™ helicopters, as follows:

Unit 1 Make and Mod I
HELICOPTER y
Date of Maqufactur
Airframe Sefial N
Airframe. Ser:al

R44 RAVEN I

Engine; Senal Nurriber: L-26286-40A )
Type:, LYCOMING 10-540-F1 L
: ‘Umt 1 Make and Model: ROBINSON ~ R44  RAVEN

o ff;’Date cf Manufacture 04 March 2004

. .. Airframe Serfal Number: RP-C 2781

. Airframe Serial Number: 1372

‘ f:..Engme Serial Number: L-26281-40A

Type LYCOMING 10-540-F1B5

It is equally important to note that this so-called Deed of Sale (Ar{‘:{éx D) is

dated 23 November 200 9,4mopths after these same helicopters were already

o sotd to the Philippine Nationa Pohce (July 23 2ﬂ09)

Also a real Deed of Sale dat 23 November 2009 would hkewnse be VOid
(consndenng that the helicopters, SN 1372 and SN 1374, were already

dehvered and accepted by the PNP on September 24, 2009.

i In orcler to ensure that MAPTRA would quahfy as a supplier for the PNP the

“’Blue Rtbbon Committee notes that Mr. Po did, in fact, lssue,:'-‘"'.”certif:catlon

'.statmg that MAPTRA is its official marketmg arm (AnnexﬁE iThls was. done

Ithe following

have some prcﬂ:ﬂ:a‘= ' talyleidl)
Philippine National (BN PhilippinésNavy (PN) and Philippine
Air Force (PAF) for the supply and sale of, among others, paris and
materials, services, and helicopters because they are not authorized
dealer of any helicopter company.
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The Blue Ribbon Committee reminds the reader that Lionair, Inc. was the
authorized dealer of Roblnson Helicopter Company It would have been impossible
for MAPTRA to deal with the PNP had it not been for the certification issued by
Lionair. This Certnﬁcatlon 51gned by Renato M Sia General Manager of Lionair, Inc.
states: S -

" This is.to authorize MANILA AEROSPACE PRODUCTS TRADING as
. our Marketing Arm to represent LIONAIR INCORPORATED -for

. miatters relating but not limited to the sale of Parts and Materials,

. Services, and to sale ROBINSON R22 and R44 Helicopter series with . .
" the Philippine Government including Philippine Navy.

Also, Mr. Po testified that Lionair provided malntenance services for the
helicopters and billed FG accordmgly

Hilario de Vera is the President and General Manager of Manila Aerospace
Products Trading Corporation (MAPTRA), the company that sold FG's used
helicopters to the Philippine National Police.

On the issue of ownership, Mr. de Vera testified of his know[edge through
Mr. Po, that the helicopters were owned by FG. Mr. de Vera, in- hIS affidavit,
narrated a cbnversaticn,vyith Mr. Po that mentioned the fo[metj'f‘ijrs‘_t‘ gentleman:

MR. DE VERA: Chig;’ bakit naman’puro pre-owied éhgi bfé,éb;‘a} na
bmfgay mo’ Brand new ang napagkasunduan nammg ng BAC; :
MR. PO: May mstrumon na ako ga/mg kay FG (’FJRST GENTLEMAN),

yan daw ang /bebenta mo'at ideliver sa PNP. Yuri ang sabi sa akin nf
FG na gusto n'ya maitulak ang tatlong hélicopter nya.

7 Affidavit of Archibald L. Po, paragraph 15. July 26, 2011.
Page 8 of 60



Mr. DE VERA: Pakisabi naman kung pwede, kahit isa o dalawang
bago at isan pre-owned.

MR. PO: Sige kausapin ko sya Magkaroon man /ang ng bago sa PP
para sa bayan, vl

In line 25 of_Mr.i gla_,,\!'afa’s affidavit, anétheri't;o'nversajgiqU was also narrated:

Mr DE VERA Chie. galing ako ng Crame, nags;gned na ako ng .
.S'uppfy Contract, Malaki problema ko, lahat brand new,

o Mr. PO: Sinabi ko na sa iyo huwag kang mag-aiala datil kahit afy
-ideliver mo sa kanila, walang magtatanong at tatanggapin yan kasi
«may order na sila galing kay FG kung. ano dapat gawin. At alam ko
kikita ka naman dyan sa dalawang pre-owned na Raven I kaya
bigyan mo ako dvan ng 50% sa neto mo para-sa extra effort ko
narman dyan sa transaksyon.

C.. . Testimony of Editha Salahci?:};jé;uan (Annex G) -

Editha Solano- Juguan is the; Marketlng, Biihng and Collection Manager of
LIONAIR, Inc. In relation to the issue of the used heilcopter ownershlp, her

testimony may be summarized in the following manner:

1. Supported by a subsidiary ledger, Ms. Solano-Juguan testified that the
former first gentleman paid fees to Lionair for the following:

a, Lease of the hangar for Php 10,000 per mﬁnth for each hehcopter
b. Operatmnal and mamtenanceﬁexpenses for amang others, gasoline,

Pllotage repalrs, take off ean,, »Iandmg expenses, and vearly annual
renewal of’ Certtf ate-of Regzs atlon and Cartlf' cate of Airworthiness.
This amounted \to : ,UDO ‘000 aﬂd US$6 900. These charges

were made from Aprii 5 2004 to May 26, 2011, and reflected in the

> Affidavit of Ms. Editha Solano-Juaguan, paragraph 4. August 10, 2011. (Annex G)
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Subsidiary Ledger of Lionair for the account of former First Gentleman

Jose Miguel Arroyo.®

2. Ms, SoIano—Juguan:
coHectlng fo' _ the'~
of L[gx;i' ne Through questlons propounded byt
Gulngona) Mé Solano-Juguan conf" rmed that on ct

Ch irman (Senator

occasmns FG
,.wa "nce fees and

“"‘fesent when she received payments for the mannt__
r,"“-even" witnessed the actual counting of moriey received.’ Thls EXchange

o fwnth the Chairman (Senator Guingona) is relevant:’

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONAL: Ano ang pmakamalakmg cash
na ibinigay sa iyo, as far as your memory can —. .-

MS. JUGUAN. One. milliol ; p@

UINGONA] ‘One Mlllrén gash. Para saan

THE' CHAIRMAR . [SE
yon? .

MS. JUGUAN. Sa mainteriahcé paing helicopter.

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN GUINGONA] Sa ma:ntenance Baklt at that
time malaki? :

MS. JUGUAN. Sa spare parts po.
| -:,; ~THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Sa spare parts.
| MS.JUGUAN. Opo. . S S

S ‘-THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. At binilang mo sa harap.ni.
M!ke Arroyo?

- MS. JUGUAN. Actdally/
Ms. Weng kd po
Rowena dei chsa

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN
salas, saan kayo, nas

® The subsidiary ledger is attached as Annex A of Ms. Solano-Juguan’s affidavit that is annexed to this
Committee Report.
7 TSN L. Sapida VII-2, August 11, 2011. 12:47 P.M, pp. 6-7.
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MS. JUGUAN. No, Your Honor. Nasa Accounting po. Na kay Rowena
del Rosario’ng kuwarto.

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA] ‘Yung Accounting, bukas ‘yung
kuwarto? -

D. Testnmonvof Dominga Lazo (Annex H)

Dommgo Lazo was LIONAIR Inc.'s flight dispatcher from May 2002 to June
2009 From his testimony, |t can be concluded that in relation to the operation of
the used hehcopters mvolved m ‘the anomalous transactlon with the PNP, the former
. Lazo’s testlmany supports the assertlon that
royo Mr. Lazo stated that:

first gentleman had full control
these hehcopters were owned by M

1 Mr. Jose MiQuel A~ri'dyo first "taétea;him in April 2004 and from thénf on,
. +gave him instructions as regards the flight plan of the hel'icoptefrs.
Occasnonally, FG would inform him of the names of the passengers :
2 He himself met FG at the hangar of LIONAIR and on such QccaSIOn the

former first gentleman informed him that on that day, he: hzmse!f would

be usmg the hehcopter g
3 After the election in 2004, frequent passengers were me :bers of the then
i rst fam fy; i ; (

The following & 7‘ M. Lazo highlights
the fact that Mr. Arroyoinde :

% Paragraph 8 of Lazo's affidavit: Makalipas ng mga apat na buwan mula dumating ang mga
helicopter sa hangar ng LIONAIR, pinuntahan ako ni Boss Archie sa hangar at pinakilala sa akin ang
kanyang kasama na si Ginoong Arroyo. Doon sa akin sinabe ni Ginoong Arroyo na siya ang gagamit
ng isang helicopter sa araw na iyon.

® TSN JADela Cruz Vi-2 August 11, 2011 12:37 A. M. pp. 5-6.
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SEN. LACSON. Sinoc naman ang nagbibigay sa tyo ng instruction kung

sino ang magiging pasahero, kung kajian lilipad at kung saan
pupunta9 Kam%g ka'? tt?matanggap ng mstructmn»*pa

MR. LAZO, Kay Flrst Gentleman po‘”

SEN. LACSON Waia nang iba?

MR LAZO Mmsan po duon sa — ‘yung maga nakaraan naaalata ko
) minsan. pg ‘'yung galing po sa secunb/ ni Mikey — Cong. Mikey and
. then d‘uon po sa mga staff po ni Cong: Mikey, ganuon din po,- .

. &EN. LACSON, Never kang nakatanggap ng instruction pard
- maglipad ng king sinong pasafiero at magpalipad sa pilo’w mula sa
‘ibang tao maliban kay dating FG Mike Arroyo at saka ‘yung mga
~ sgcurity ni Congressman Mlkey at lahat ng may koneksyon sa First

" Family?

MR, LAZO. Wala pa.
SEN. LACSON, Sila lang talaga ang pupwede?

MR. LAZO. Ang natatandaan ko po sa helicopter, lahat po ng
instruction ng lipad galing po lahat sa kanya,

N
Sty

E.  Testimony of Claudio DS Gaspar; Jr.

Cléudio DS Gaspar, Jr. is a pilot and a member of the PNP Air Unit. He
testified’® that on several occasions, members of the first family were the
passengers of the helicopters before they were sold to the PNP.

SEN. LACSON: Sino ang pinakamalimit mong pasahero?
“MR. GASPAR Mga members ng Flrst Famr[y, 5|r
MR LACSON L;ke? Please adentlfy

GASPAR Sila Congressman Mnkey, sw, suia FG

0T8N, BRHGonzales VII-1 July 28, 2011 10:07AM, pp 1f.
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F. Flight logs

The Blue Ribbon Committ
and discovered that mdeed, p,s

ight logs for the used helicopters
% members of the former first
family were the most freq iet i5-report is a summary of

the flight logs created by-thls Commlt:tee (Annex I)

G. Tes’tir;nq'ir‘iybf Rowena del Rosario”

Rowena del Rosario was the former bookkeeper of Lourdes T De Arroyo
Incorporated or LTA Inc, Her testimony supports the claims of the employees of
LIONAIR Inc. that fees were paid for the maintenance and operation of the
hehc0pters that were sold to the Phnhppme National Police. Rowena . del. Rc\sano

clalms that it was Ignacio Arroyoﬂ vho paid LIONAIR Inc but nevertheiess, she Ciid

not deny_, that these fees were in

The Blue Rlbbon Commlttee pounts out the fact that deSp!te Ignacm Arroyo S
clatm that they only leased the helicopter frorn March 16, 2004 to May 15, 2004 Ms
del’ Rosario never denled the claim that fees were pald from 2004 until 2011

L;kewise, she also affirmed that she remitted US$500,000. 00 to Robmson
Hehcopter This portlon of the investigation is relevant:

MS. DEL ROSARIO: Opo

1 TSN, MELNOVERO IX-1 August 22, 2011 10:35AM, p5-f.
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THE SENATE PRESIDENT [SEN. ENRILE]: Nasa LTA ka na nun?

MS. DEL ROSARIO: Opo.

y 0; i:ls;*l:ha_i\flsere:= Lessar of the Helicopters;"?

On_the claim of Ignacio fAﬁ'o___
Discussing the Value af the A:rcraﬁ: Fleet Servnce Agreemen

Because of testimomes made before the Senate Blue Rtbbsn Committee, Jose
Miguel T. Arroyo filed a complaint for perjury, false testimony, and offermg false
testimony (Articles 183 and 184 of the Revised Penat Code) agalnst Arch:bald Po.
Attached to the complaint was an Aircraft Fleet Service Agreement (Lease
Agreemeht) allegedly entered into by Rene Sia as Corporate Secretary of Lionair,
Inc. and Ignacio Arroyo, President of LTA, Inc,

The lease agreement contains the following terms:

1. Five helicopters were leased ﬁ';ci'rrf: March 16, 2004 to May 14, 2004. These
helicopters had serial numbers: 1370, 1371, 1372, 1373, and 1374.

2. The indicated minimum cost of charter for fiVE (5) helicopter units was Php
9,823,290.00.

Surprisingly, the lease agreement is undated but it was notarlzecl on March
16, 2004, .

The Blue Rlbbon Committee categortcaﬂy re;ects this document and points
out several wregulanties and ancon51stenc:es m Mr Ignacm Arroyo s claim.

First, the lease agreement\iﬁ\}bl\}e"d," émbng others, the helicopters sold to the
PNP bearing serial numbers 1372 and 1374. Note that the lease agreement was

" Press Statement is attached as Annex .
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notarized on March 16, 2004 and indicated the same day as the start of the lease
period. However, the helicopters with serial numbers 1372 and 1374 only arrived in
the Philippines on March 17, 2004 a day after. the )f‘ irst day of the purported lease
agreement (Annex K) U '. |

Second, accordmg to the testlmony of Mr S:a, he was snmp!y asked to affix
his signature;- ometlme in the year 2005 or 2006, on the page contatmng his name.
The entire Iease document, drafted solely by the Arroyos, was not even “given to
him. This testimony supports this Committee’s belief that the lease agreement does

not reﬂect a true agreement. Several other irregularities must be noted as well:

1. Mr. Sia's residence certificate number (10579800F April 2, 2004 Pasay,
Metro Manila), as mdlcated in the Aircraft Fleet Service Agreement

- sputious. Immedtately-natmeable that while the lease agreement was

" notarized on March 16, 2004 Sia's residence certificate was supposedly

issued on April 2, 3004: Mt‘_;Sta was able to obtain a certification from

- Pasay which states that this bartlcular certificate was never issued by the

: authorized office. Introduced into the records of the case was this

testimony: |

MR. SIA: Apparently hindi po sa akin ‘yung residence -
certificate na iyun kaya nagpakuha rin po kami ng opinion‘_: ’
. . doon sa City Treasurer's Offi ice ng Pasay, certlﬁcat;on po

SEN OSMENA; 5o, natrace nmyo yung old ras:dence
certificate runyo"? LT :

,'-‘!‘MR SIA Hmdl po “‘:’un pong resacience certlﬁcate na
K ‘nakalagay doon sa acknowledgement page,: pmarefer po
nammg 58’ CJty Treasurers Off ce ng Pasay at hagbigay po

13 TSN, MHBALAGNE, XI-1 August 25, 2011 11’ 07N B 2

THE SENATE PRESIDENT [SEN. ENRILE]: Mr. Sia, sino bang gumawa nung lease
contract, kayo ang nag-draft?

MR. SIA: Hindi po, Your Honor.
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sila ng certification na hindi po sila nag-issue ng ganoong
certificate number.

2. Mr, Sia purportedly SIQned 'aSA th corporate?_secretary of Lionair.
However, a certam Eduar_~ Aust 18
of L|onalé, EInc —in 2004 (Annex L)

3. The *lease agreement was signed even in the absence <of any
,Identiﬂcatlon document for Ignac:o Arroyo. v

4. Cdﬁtrary to common practice, only the signature of Igna’(‘:ﬂib; :
‘JArroyo appears on each and every page of the lease agreemeﬁt.t | “
Thas puts value on Mr. Sia's testimony that he was simply gtven L
“the signature page of tl1eicontract and he afF xed his signature on

- the same page only

Lastly, it makes no sense for any party to enter into a lease agreement i{#hich
would end on May 15, 2004 and the same party would continue to pay the lessor for
maintenance and operating expenses amounting to Php 18,250,000.00 until;‘ 2011.

The Blue Ribbon Committee strongly condemns Iggy Arroyo for attemptlng to
present thls document to muddle the issue of the helicopters ownershlp in an
attempt to mislead the Committee. It is not an excuse that, he djd thns to save his

brother, Jose Mlguel Arroyo*‘aSenatOr Lacson, pomted out:

_}—h , ‘isslie.
then, we jList’iIWOUId"Iik the1 ct ghat I’gg\? -Arroyo, on
several occasions_ befor & had come ‘to, the. rescue of his brother to
the extent of falsifying” documents and using some people just to
advance his interest or the inter&st of the brother. So that's the only
point that I wanted raised in this hearing, Mr. Chairman.

" TSN: MPMendoza, VIII-1, August 22, 2011, 10:25AM, pé.
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On the point raised by Senator Lacson, it was revealed in the hearing on
August 22, 2011, through the testimony of Restituto Mosqueda, that Iggy Arroyo

fagcounts that were previously

Liel tion te'ether alleged anomalous
Is ,thus observecl that when  FG

transactions. A. patter _rpyo '4‘5*,|n trouble, Iggy
Arroyo comes to the rescue In the Jose Pidal issue ahcl:. on the lssue of the
helicopters” ownership, he attempted to hide the “unlawful acts ef hlS brother.
Unfortunateiy for him, his machlnatlons have been poorly planned and comically
executed Mrr Iggy Arroyo should stop the tirade and stop defending h;s brother for
acts . that are blatantly against the law. As a member of the House of
Representatlves, he bears both the privilege and duty to obey the very- Iaws that
Congress has passed. Because of his position, he sheuld have the decency te uphold
the lntegrity of lawful procesge: like mvestrgat:ons conducted by the Blue thbon
Commlttee Iggy cannot mock leg ite processes by allowing his brother to hlde
behlnd an Iggy Arroyo slgnature affi xe__ on a dOCUment as questionable as jt |s Irke
the Alrcraft Fleet Service Agreement mvolved inthis case.

The Ombudsman should further investigate Iggy Arroyo’s criminal . hablhf:y in
relation tq hrs admission in a press statement, in his attempt to cover up fer Mike
Arroyo that there was supposedly a lease agreement. between LTA, Inc, and Lu:)nalr

IL. NEGOTIATION to STGNING of the SUPPLY.CONTRACT
Facts

The Philippine National- Police’s - Adnual® Pocurement Plan for CY 2008
indicated One Hundred Five Million Pesos (Php 105,000,000.00) for the acquisition,
through public bidding, of three (3) light operational helicopters.
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However, the procurement process resuited to two failed biddings. For the
first failed bidding,'®> Manila Aerpspace.and Aerotech Industries bought bid

documents but did not subm t documents for the helicopters.

Likewise, for the second !failgé’d;ilg;e ding; no ’iritéi’ésit’edw rop( e'?j{;:-submitted a hid.*°

Pursuant to the procurement law, PNP proceeded to negotiated procurement
and three supphers partlcapated 47

- E-A.r“;.i;’iAPTRA This company offered to deliver one (1 equip(fieo LPOH and
it two (2) standard LPOH for One Hundred Five Million Pesos (Php
. 105,000,000.00). .
o Beeline, Inc. -This company offered to-deliver two (2) units. for One
* Hundred Nineteen Pesos (Php 119,000,000.00).

s’ Aerotech- This t;omp"

Hitially partIClpated but “did not submit any
praposal because the| POH engine requirement is piston but ‘their

helicopters are equ;pped with turbane engine.”

Dn May 22, 2009, the NHQ- BAC deciared a failed negotiation and c:ited th:s

reason 5

" WHEREAS, the end-user made it clear during the pre-bid. conference
oo that they need at least three {3) equipped PLOH, which serves as
+ - ‘the minimbm requirement and, as such, the respective proposais of
Ly MAPT RA and BEELINE are not acceptable. -

ar‘méyi_} ‘Lil)’é?‘because after
qtmfoi‘ Logistics (TDL)

The procurem hnt pro
the failed negottatlon‘ th ;

5 29 October 2008. NHQ Bids and:Award Co mltte” decfai'étf 3t
Resolution No. 2008-72. '
16 30 April 2009, NHQ Bids and Awards Committee deciared a failure of bidding through NHQ-BAC
Resolution 2009 13,
i‘; 556 22 May 2009, NHQ Bids and Awards Commitiee Resolution 2009-17.

id.

re of bidding through NHQ-BAC
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informing the latter of the modification of their requirement from three equipped
I_LPOH to at least one (1) equipped and two (2) standard LPOH.

nmendedto the Chief, PNP that the
ur;émEnt of at least one

On May 29, 20019,_;,; [
Negotiation Committe b orized, !
(1) unit equnppede LPOH f_and two (2) units standard In justifying its
recommendatlon for a negotlated procurement, the NHQ BA{ prowded for the
followmg reasons, 4

.. . "WHEREAS, in hig letter, the D, SAF informed TDL that, presently, . .- .’
- “their Air Unif, has only one (1) functioning helicopter that will soon °, *
"> be grounded for maintenance purposes, the SAF badly need LPOH )

because they have on-going anti-criminality operations in Jolo, Sulu
for which SAF Bafallions have been deployed . and are closely
¢oordinating with . the Armed Forces of the Philippines (AFP) in
pursuing criminal elemeﬁ' thereat particularly members of the Abu
Sayaff Group (ASG)

On June 15, 2009, PNP helcl ~negot|atlons and two companies subm:tted
propasals .
» BEELINE's. offer: One Hundred Four Million Nine Hundred E|ghty~
Seven Thousand Pesos (Php 104,987,000.00) for three (3) brand
v new helicopters inclusive of all taxes, import duties anc! charges
- . MAPTRA's offer: One Hundred Four Million, Nine Hundred Fighty-
V,‘},-wae Thousand Pesos (Php 104,985,000. 00) -far*"ene (1) fully

In their recommendation™® dated’ 72009, /theNegotiation Committee
rejected BEELINE's offer;and ¢i

WHEREAS, the proposal of BEELINE is not acceptable because the
helicopters that they shall deliver, in case contract is awarded to
them, are without airconditioners and HID xenon light, and have

¥ NC Resolution 2009-04
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Committee cited these reasans

sitting capacity for a maximum of 3 persons only, hence non-
conforming with the specifications. Moreover, they are still in the
process of building their maintenance facility in the Philippines.

-

. WHEREAS, the proposal of MAPTRA, on the other hand, could be -
) summanzed as follows: the total contract price for the 3 brand new. .

In recornmendlng for th ) awarci af the contract to- MAPTRA the Negotiation

‘,.hellcopters is P104,985,000.00 inclusive of all taxes, import dutless.
.and charges to be delivered in Camp Crame; the helicopters, one (1}

fully equipped and two (2) standards, all brand new shall be in, '
- accordance with the NAPOLCOM .approved specifications, which have -

. @ maximum sliting capacity for 4 persons including the pitot; theic -

proposal also includes the training of two (2) pilots far 7 days and
two (2) aircraft mechanics for 14 days at Robinson Helicopter
Factory, Los Angeles Torrance, USA, all expenses shall be for the
account of MAPTRA

WHEREAS, between the two (2) proposals recewed that of MAPTRA
is acceptable becalise - the! “helicopters that they will deliver are
consistent with thé NAPOQL( M::;,appro\/ed specifications, the total
price quoted is withif ABC, and that MAPTRA is a legally,
technically and financiafly capabie suppliers of helicopters since they
have been engaged in the buSiness for so many years now with
available ahd existing facilities.

The Recommendation was signéd by the following:

‘e Luizo C. Ticman, Police Director, TDL/Chairman of

the Negotiation Commitiee

e ";Ronald D. Roderos, Police Director, TDRQj\_,(igé;,ﬁ'

W Chall’man
. ‘Leo;:aclfg 8C
* - Superintendent,

) Ch;ef‘-‘ -

Romeo Hllomen‘—;

Recommendation but reasoned th=

dld not sign the

sﬁwas"only because' he was absent on the day

the resolution was signed. He was, however present during the negotiations and

presented no obiection to the award of the contract to MAPTRA.
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A resolution® affirming the recommendation of the Negotiation Committee
was signed also on July 9, 2009 by the following:

» Jeﬁerson Sonane, Pohce Deputy/Dxreclﬂr General, TDCO/Chairman;
s Luizo. €. Ticman; Police- Dlrector TDL/Chaarman of
the Negotlatien Committee e
s Ronaldl D. Roderos, Police Dlrector TDRD/VICE
- Chairman
o leocadioc SC Santiago, IR, Police Chlef
_+ Superintendent, D, SAF/Provisional Member ;
« Herold G. Ubalde, Police Chief Supenntendent D, LS/Member

Jeéus A. Versoza, Po!iqe Dire'ctor General, Chief, PNP, approved the resolution
affirming the recommendation’"of the Negotiation Comimittee to award thé ¢ontract
to MAPTRA. As mentioned, Romeo Hllomen was - absent that day and thus was
unable to sign the document

On July 23, 2009, the Supﬁls'f;f;C{)‘hjtract (Annex M) between the PNP and the
Manila Aerospace Products Corporation was signed by Hilario de Vera, as président
of MAPTRA and Jesus A. Versoza and the Chief, PNP. ‘

Findings

The Blue Rlbbon Committee finds several arregularltles and vnoiations of law in
refation to the award of the contract to MAPTRA These are as fQ"QWS

First, the PNP wolated the Procurement l_aw when tt awarded the contract to

MAPTRA, an enttty that is not a iegaily, techmc:aliy and f” nanmaﬂy capable supplier of
helicopters. The followmg must be neted R

20 NHQ-BAC Resolution No. 2009-36
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a. The PNP awarded the contract on July 23, 2009 to Manila Aerospace
Products Trading Corporation, a company that was incorporated only on
June 10, 2009 or one (1)--month .and thirteen (13) days before the
contract was sngned ‘,

“i?_have been an immediate
warnlng sngn for, the' PNP to pursue’ fl.irti‘u.—*:nrw hvestlgatlon on the true
' “not MAPTRA was
an. authorlzed supplier of helicopters would have bee {8 sufﬁc;ent At this

capaCIty of its 5upbiier A simple guestion on ‘whathe

stage, the PNP could have immediately discovered that MAPTRA was an
“unquallf“ ed supplier. LT

" b. -The Articles of Incorporation of MAPTRA Is very clear that the fébmpany’s
purpose does not include sale of helicopters, Under primary purpose, it
says: “sale of aircraft parts and spare Qarts " Under secondary purpose,

* it says “aircraft mamtenanc:e and repair | of alrcraﬂ: engine.” By a cursory
. reading of the Artlcies af Incorporatnon, the ‘Negotiation Committee shouid
" have immediately re1ecte,,_;_M

APTRA as a potential supplier because it was
~clear that MAPTRA was not engaged in the business of selling hehcopters

c. MAPTRA's paid-u;j‘ capital at the time of incorporation was‘j,‘_f,'c_;g}ly Php
-+ 312,500.00. Tt must be noted that Article 5 of the Supply. Contract (Annex

| A) required MAPTRA to post a performance surety bond that'w'as 30% of
the contract price (Php 31,500,000.00). The Negotiation Commlttee should
have relected MAPTRA because it was clear that the ff nanc&ai capabmty of

certified supplier. The 4cert|f” ed entlty was Manﬂa Aerospace Products
Trading, a sole proprietorship. Even if one were to accept the argument
that the two entities are one and the same, the Blue Ribbon Committee
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“f,

points out the clear fact that the PNP Certificate of Accreditation (Annex
0) issued to the sole proprietorship was valid only until January 22, 2009.
Hence, neither the corporatio
PNP, nor the sole:p

Supply Contract . was szgned" oy “July" 23

igned the supply contract with the

PNP-accredited supplier when the
zuoé‘ .rkewase, this PNP
Certlﬁcate of ‘Accredrtatron shows that MAPTRA'S’ accreeiitatlon is only for
contracts that are not more than three million and seven hundred PESOS
(Php 3 7{30 000.00). Here, the contract awarded to MAP’IRA was PhplOS

’ \mllhon

e The PNP repeatedly tried to claim that they dealt with MAPTRA?becere it
| ~was a Philippine Government Electronic Procurement System (Phil (“EPS)
- certified supplier. However a careful readlng of the Phil-GEPS certlﬂcatton
- (Annex P) shows clear{y.,: r\at the certified suppher was Manila Aerospace
Products Trading, the sole"‘ oreprietorship: and not the corporation that the

- PNP entered into a contrac_;w&h

To defend itself, the PNP might try to claim that Manila Aerospace
* Products Trading Corporatlon had the authority to sell helicopters to the
| government. For this futile defense, the PNP might present a letter written

by -Renato M. Sia, General Manager of LIONAIR, Inc. (Annex E) For

‘ purposes of this report, the substance of this letter is reproduced below

e :: E"Thls 54401 “duthorize > MANILAS AER@SPACE ppmucrgr
B U.,—‘; i ( -

This document is without valué Ber:ause of the following reasons: i)
PNP’s contract is with the corporation and not the sole proprietorship
indicated in this letter, ii) the authorization is dated August 4, 2009-

Page 23 of 60



only after MAPTRA had negotiated and entered into a contract with
PNP.

A closer look mto the mmutes‘_z gotlatlon meetmg clearly reveals that

the Bids and Awards Commlttees ""Legal and the Te _mca

orking Group also
participated in the anomaicus award of the contract Jtc ahwunq': hﬁed supplier. If
they really Ioc)ked carefuliy into the documents presented by MAPTRA and discussed
above, they wouid have immediately discovered that they were dealmg with &
supplier that was not legally, financially, and techpically capable. However despite
this, the mmutes indicate that (Annex Q): '

The Chairman instructed MAPTRA's representative to hand over their
Eligibility, Technical*and Financial documents to the Secretariat and
the TWG. After thorough checkmg by the BAC Legal and TWG on
Eligibility and Techmc documents, it was fourid to be all in order
and conforming with the ments by the Comm:ttee hence, the
opening of its ﬁnanctal p T

Second, despite prior knowledge that MAPTRA was offering to se‘!"l, used
helicopters, PNP nevertheless awarded the contract to MAPTRA. The Négeiiation
Committee affirmed the award and Jesus Versoza, Chief, PNP, approved and signed
the Supply Contract These are the pieces of ewdence to support th:s Cemmrttee 5
ﬁndmgs on. thls matter:

a, The proposal from MAPTRA to the PNP, dated. ]une_ls 2009 clearly
mdlcated that the’ heliéopter:
offermg were “serv
the defi mtion‘,kl«
information were prov: led; ant

" the - same cleariy showed that the
helicopters offered by MAPTRA were not brand new:
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For helicopter with Serial No. 1370
s Date of Manufacture, Airframe: March 3, 2004
o Aircraft Time to Date (24 Mar. 09): 367H36M

Date Manufactured, Enging: 27-5ep..2003

Alrcraft Tmfié to Date (24 Mar. 09): 481H06M
v Date Manufactured, Engines 13 November 2003.

Instead of immediately rejecting the proposal of the potential suppher the
members of the PNP Negotiation Team figuratively closed the;r eyes and
msmted on awarding the contract to MAPTRA

of the Negotia’tidn Committee attemzf::t‘éd;t’to
ving that they, m fact rejected MAPTRA' oﬁer
any was offering used hehcopters M.

" Luizo Ticman, Chairm
_ defend their actions by sa

Ticman's explanation to t e .Chairman (Senator Guingona) was:

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN, GUINGONAT: MAPTRA offerad all brand-new?
They did not, they offered service centetr condition.

L. MR, TICMAN: No, sif. No,sir. That was a negotzatron And the verbal
- discyssion when we clarified to them, we countered that we cannot -~
© . accept second-hand because we were buying brand-new and theyf“
S ‘acg:epted So that became their new proposal.

.documents. And
; s t as that is not in
yaur documents, Iyang ang nakapagtataka

2t RIOrtiz, VI-3 August 2, 2011 2:52PM, p.5
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However, contrary to Mr. Ticman's self-serving assertions, the minutes of
the said negotiation meeting does not, in any part, mention any statement

of rejection of proposa! from any of the members of the negotiation

i :ﬁ'mpted to use line 94 of the
minutes to- prove that he- rejected the offer of MAPTRA for used
hehcopters e Ll

committee. In the hearmg, f

MR TICMAN‘ Sir, I invite your attention on line 94, Isa, snr, dlt:c:
““Police Director Hilomen, PDC, asked the proponents if the thiee‘
helicopters, two standards and one fully-equipped that they will ’
. deliver to the PNP are all branc-new helicopters, And then the
- proponent said that all of the three helicopters that they will deliver |
are brand-new.” ’

By reading this part of_ ,E.h? minutes into the records of the Blue Ribbon
Committee, Mr. Ticman further dug a deeper hole for himself and the rest
of the Negotiation Comm;tteebecause )i it now appears that they simply
relied on the verbal préfr%?séf;;fbf»MAPTRA that the helicopters they will
_deliver are brand-new. ii) the Negotiation Team obviously ignored the fact
- that in the proposal of MAPTRA, it was obvious that the heliéﬁ}pters
offered were second hand. Relying on the mere verbal prémise_ of
- MAPTRA reveals the PNP's ignorance of the fact that :i;:hiie the
procurement law allows for negotiated procurement, it does not do away
with the duty of the procuring entity to ensure that: ‘lhe suppher is fegally,
technacally, and fi nancually capable 2 To do thls, a procurmg entity must
have all the docum._:,nts te supportfthe commltments of the suppher and
to support the latter 5 clalm of legai i nanc;al and techmcal capability.

During the hearing af the B(uey Rsbbon Committee, Mr. Ticman continued

to incriminate himself as the head of the Negotiation Committee. When

22 Section 48 (&) of Republic Act 9184.
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asked by Senator Lacson if he knew the meaning of “service center

condition”, Mr. Ticman answered:

MR. TICMAN; . To'be g-encounter ‘yong

His‘aiji’é\-:{r )_‘ ‘ Failur rt as chairman
of the Committee to Iook at the proposal of the supplier_ Mr 'iﬂc_man must
“‘be reminded that the word “service center cordition” a!reac!y ﬁappears on
page 8 of MAPTRA's proposal ThIS further supports the- Biue Ribbon
'.fjf,ACommlttees finding that the Negotiation Committee, instead (}f carefu!ly

3 I.\_rewewmg the documents showing the technical, financial, and legal

; ‘f;capablhty of the su;)pl{er chose to beheve in-the latter's verbal promfses
* instead. To e e

. Aside from criminal liabilitles, Mr. Ticmari ftist be severely chasi:iéé?jﬁ for
~ treating a government contract as if it was a simple agreement peiiyegn
*two drunk and careless individuals, At the very least, the Nefjﬁtiéiibn
" - Committee should have asked for a separate and new proposal _;ﬁétead of

“saying, laughably, that the Supply Contract which states that the
- "‘hellcopters were brand new, amounted to a proposa! Mr. Tlcman s ‘hazy

E ".explanatmn was:

L;x .

; MR TICMAN And: we made it clear to‘them & repre

approved sp
Your Honor.

Furthermore, it is obvious that another proposal indicating that MAPTRA

was able to deliver brand-new helicopters was never really requested or
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submitted; a fact that Mr. Ticman as head of the Negotiation Commiittee
and the signatory of the Supply Contract knew even when the Supply
Contract was signed. Mr. .Ticman.. cannot put the blame on MAPTRA
because even the Suppiy Contract Slgned by Mr. Ticman himself stilf
referred to the oid proposal of MAPTRA the cne ciear!y showing that the
hehcopters offered were service center condnt;oned The Jast line of Article
1 of the Suppiy Contract clearly refers* to the old proposal

Inctﬁded in the delivery are all the accessories mentioned during the
negotiation conference held on June 15, 2009 which were

‘confirmed by the Company in their detailed proposal, which
is Annex “B” of this Contract (Emphasis supplied).

Mr. Ticman's def‘énse must be discarded as these were self-serving
desperate attemptsi'to ;c';o&{ier up the clear violations of law committed by
~ the Negotiation Commjft:e‘é;' ‘

Violations of NAPOLCOM and Ronaldo V. Puno

Ronaido V. Puno, in his capacity as fbrmer Secretary of the Depaftment of
Interior and Local Government and Chairman of the NAPOLCOM could havé stopped
this anomalous transaction if only he performed the duties required in ‘NAPOLCOM
Resolution 2008-158, a resolution he himself signed on March 6, 2008“(Arihex S).

NAPOLCOM ;Re\'s}d!{iﬂtioanq; ZQOKSQ-J,SSETCFEE‘{&S‘Qﬁ:(ﬁgﬁ?réighzti(b‘fnijriiftee to:

° “Momtor evew stage of the piocurement process undertaken by
the Phlhppme Nahonal Pohce"B, and '

o “Review as the case maybe, documents after the Award of the
PNP Purchase Contract involving five hundred milfion pesos

** Section 2 (1)
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S and regulatlons.

(P500M) and below, as provided for by Executive Order No. 423
dated April 30, 2005 prior to the issuance of the Notice to Proceed
to the winning bidder

- Of Execitive’ Ofder N
Secretary should certlfy und

m tum, requires that the
* gath that the contract

. !{;ghas béen entered into in fa:thfui compliance with all applicable laws

In the hearing held on the 13" of September 2011, Dlreeter Conrado
Sumanga; Jr member of NAPOLCOM’s Oversight Committee, testufied that the

Commtttee was only present m ohe stage of the precurement process; dUrmg the

first. falled bidding.2" Sumanga thu testified:

ho ako nakagawa. Probably, because s dami po ng mga trabahong
.+ nakasaad sa akin.

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN au GONA]
the m:lestones of this: pu

! Sa, did you make a report on

MR. SUMANGA: Actually, sir;-singe the first public bidding, there was

‘no report yet that was made because T was of the belief that T will

make a repart only on the process when-it is already. of importance
that I should come up with a report. Because, T understand, a failure
of first public bidding, there will be a reguirement to second failure
of public bidding. But then, wala na po akong natanggap kaya hindi

'"THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA: So you did not make a reporf o

T ,durmg these milestones?

. f'- MR, _SU.MANGA: No, sir.

4 Section 2 (2).

> TSN, GSapinoso I-1 September 13, 2011 9:15A.M. p.5

*® Members of the NAPOLCOM Oversight Committee: Commissioner Miguel G. Coronel, Assistant
Secretary Oscar F. Vatenzuela, Director Conrado L. Sumanga, Jr.

7 Supra note 24.
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definitely gathered that no report was ever released by the NAPOLCOM in relation to
the procurement of the used helicopters.®®

MS. MUNIEZA, 28-Sl Withrégard

helicopters, sir, there was
no report

THE CHAIRMAN[ N UINGONA} No report?
MS MUNIEZA Yes, sir.

THE ' CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONAL: No monitoring report
whatsoevet? S

' MS, MUNIEZA: Yes, Your Honor,

It was also clear that Ronaldo Puno failed to issue a certification afsi‘required
by Executlve Order No. 423 % It is clear that NAPOLCOM through Ronalclo Puno,

failed to exercise its duties Il‘i rela ion to the procurement process of the PNP 3 This

exchange proved important: .

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN G _ONA] (earher port[ons omitted) To
your knowledge, if you knowwas a certification issued by the
secretary of the DILG prior to the issuance of the notice to proceed,
if you know.
MR. TICMAN: T am not aware, Mr. Chairman.

- THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]: Ms, Munieza.

" MS. MUNIEZA: Yes, Your Honer.

|—.

% Id. and TSN, JADeIa Cruz 11-1 September 13, 2011 9:25am,.p. 2%
* Ms. Munieza te.stlf ed as the Headxsl_,ﬂ_ iat of NAPOLCO :

approval and/or to entériinto Gavemment contracts of their respective
agencies, entered into through allernative methods of procurement
allowed by law. Provided, that the Department Secretary certifies under
oath that the contract has been entered into in faithful compliance with

all applicable laws and requlations.
* Supra note 26., p.3
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THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]J: Are you aware that after the
signing of the supply contract before issuance of notice to proceed,
was there a certification issued by the secretary of the DILG.

MS, MIUNIEZA: Iam not aware

you recall of?

IIL. DELIVERY, INSPECTION, and PAYMENT of CONTRACT * "\
Facts

Oh‘ September 24, 2009, inspection and test flight were conducted én the two
(2) used hght police operattanaf hehcopters * On October 14, 2609, WTCD Report
number T2009 094A on two, umts of Robinson R44 Raven I Hehcopter (Standard)

SN 1372 (RP44250) and SN 1374 (RP~435?)
: .33

was issued. The units mspected were

The report contained the following ﬁndings

PNP Specifications for Light Specificaticins of Robinson Remark(s)
Police Operational Helicopter | R44 Raven I Helicopter

Power Plant: Piston Piston-type Conf‘ormmg
Power: .- Rating: 200hp | 225 , . ‘. Conforming
(mlnlmum) -

Speed: 100 knots (mlnlmum) 113 knots ‘ _Cenformmg
Range: 300 mlles (minimum) 400 miles L 'T.Corzformtng

Endurance: 3 Hours (mlnlmum) No available data

Service Cellmg} ig ‘(_j;gpnformmg‘
Capability): '

14 000
(Maximum) ‘

T/0 Gross Wenght. 2,60 b Conforming

(maximum)

3 Memorandum on the After Activity Report: Inspection and Test Flight on Robinsons R44 Raven 1
Helicopters. October 2, 2009,

33 National Police Commission National Headquarters, Philippine National Police Directorate for
Research and Development. WTCD Report Number T2009-04A. Cctober 14, 2009.
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Seating Capacity: 1 Pilot + 3 1 pilot + 3 passengers Conforming
_pax (maximum)

Ventilating  System:  Air- | Not airconditioned Standard
conditioned Heticopter

Aircraft Instruments:

Standard to include Diré'c‘tiéhaf
Gyro Above Horizon' with, Shp

Skid Indicator - and Vert;cai
Compass *

o :Equipped wn:h Directional Gyro
Above Horizon with Slip Skid
Indicator and VEIftigf:aE{ Compass

Conforming

Color and Markmgs'

White with appropriate markings
specified in NAPOLCOM Res. No.
99-002 dated January 5, 1999
(Approving the Standard Color
and Markings for PNP Motor
Vehicles, Seacraft and Aircraft)

White  with apprapriakt'é,_,}
‘markings as specified In

NAPOLCOM Res. No. 99-002

- Conforming

Warranty:
The supplier warrants any defect

in material and workmanship

within the most advantageous

terms and conditions in favar of-

the government.

The supplier will. warrant(s)
any defect in material and

|-workmanship within the most
-advantageous  terms  and
| conditions in favor of the

Indicated in the
contract (To
indude time-

change parts as
suggested by

" fgovemment for two (2) years. | DRD Test and
‘ , Evaluation
, Board)
Requirements: : :
Maintenance Manual Provided - Conforming
Operation Manual Provided

Conforming

The WTCD Report Number T2009-04A was sngned by the members of the
inspection team - PSSUPT Edgar B. Paatan, PSUPT Larry D. Baimaceda PSUPT
Claudio DS Gaspar\ Jr., SPO3 Jorge B. Gabiana, SPO3 Ma. LmdawA Pado;snog, PO3
Dionisio J|menez, NUP Ruben R GongOna, NUP: Erwin Q. Chavarrla, NUP Emilia A.
Aliling, NUP Erwm Paul Maranan, Supemsor @f the :nSpectmn team ‘Maria Josefina

Recometa; Recommending Approval

L. Saligumba; and Noted by Rsnald D Roderos

* 1d,

Joel Cnsostomo 1. Garcza Altested by ~ Luis
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It is important to pay close attention to the report reproduced above and
signed by the PNP officers mentioned in the preceding paragraph. It is very clear
that these officers already indicated that the helicopters that were delivered were
not air-conditioned as requlred by the NAPOLCOM specrﬁcattons This clearly
indicates that the subordinate members of the PNP d:d their ]ob to inspect the items
in accordance with the NAPOLCOM specifications. ror this reason, the Blue Ribbon
Committee strongly believes that the following persons should not be charged:
PSUPT Larry D. Balmaceda, PSUPT Claudio DS Gaspar Jr., SPO3 Jorge B. Gabiana,
SPO3 Ma. Linda ’A. Padojinog, PO3 Dionisio Jimenez, NUP Ruben S.-Gongona, NUP
Erwin Q. Chavarria, NUP Emilia A. Aliling, NUP Erwin Paul Maranah, and Maria
Josefina Recometa.

If the approving authontles only took note of the result of the inspection, they
could have easily rejected the dehvered heimopters on the ground that it did not
conform to the NAPOLCOM spemﬂcattons It is therefore strange that Joel
Crisostomo  Garcia  signed 'undér the notation “Recommending Approval”.
Furthermore, glaring is the fact that the detalis of the Report were disregarded and
that the Inspection and Acceptance Commlttee, through Resoiution IAC—09—045,
nevertheless ruled that the helicopters should be accepted for use by the PNP. This
Resolution was signed by the following persons who should be the ongﬁ ,éharged,
among other persons, for this anomalous sale: PCSUPT Luis Luarc;af‘Saligumba,
PSSUPT Job Nolan D. Antonio, PSSUPT Edgar Bawayan Paatan, and PDRI George
Quinto Piano. -

The Inspectlon T eam found ‘the items Stated iﬁ’ ‘the approved
PNPP#0(M)220909- 017 to be ln gt:aod order/condltien and m accordance/ conforming
to the approved NAPOLCOM speclf“catmns Rk Satd report was signed by Property

** National Police Commission Philippine National Police Directorate for Comptrollership Inspection
Raport Form.
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Inspector PO3 Avensuel G. Dy and noted by Palice Senior Superintendent Mansue N.
Lukban.*

On October 16, 2009, N he Dlrectorate for Research and Development thru
Police Director Ronald b. Rodero issued a° Memmandum stdtmg that the result of
the mspection “Lonformed W!th the NAPOLCOM—Approved PNP spec;flcattons for

Light Police Operatlonal Hehcopter and as specified in the Purchase Order el

On Nov. 11, 2009, the NHQ-PNP Inspection and Acceptance Committee
issued Resolution No. TAC-09-045. The resolution contained the following findings:

WHEREAS, after inspection and evaluation was conducted, the
Committee found the said items to be conforming to the approved
NAPOLCOM specifications and passed the acceptance criteria as
submitted by DRD on W"!'CD Report No, T2009- D4A

NOW THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED AS IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED,
that the above mentioned items be accepted for use of the PNP. 3

Said resolution was signed by Pél'ice Chief Superintendent George Q. Piano,
Police Senior Superintendent Luis L. Saligumba, Police Senior Superintendent Job
Nolan D. Antonio, and Police Senior Superintendent Edgar B. Paatan.

Meanwhile, on February 17, 2010, WTCD Report Number TZOIO*CS on one
unit of Light Police Operational Helicopter (Robinson R44 Raven II) Wasj"tésiled The
unit inspected was - Senai Number 12471 (RP- 2045) T he report contained the
following findings: >

16 jd L . . . ¢ ;

¥ National Police Commsssmn National Headquarters Phliappme National Police Directorate for
Research and Development. Memorandum on the Result of Téchnical Inspection of the Two (2) Units
of Light Police Operational Helicopter (Robihson R44 Raven I) delivered by Manila Aerospace Products
Training Corporation. Qctober 16, 2009.

8 National Headquarters Philippine National Police Inspaction and Acceptance Committee Resolution
No. TAC-09-045. November 11, 2009,

* National Police Commission National Police Headquarters, Philippine National Police Directorate for
Research and Development WTCD Report Number T2010-05.
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Color TV Camera, Gyrostabilized

Nr.| PNP Specifications for Light Specifications of Remari (s)
Police Operational Helicopter Robinson R22
Raven II
1 [ Power Plant: Piston Piston . Conforming
2 | Power Rating: 200 hp (mlnlmum) 245 . Conforming
3 | Speed: 100 knots (minimumy - 1130 knots - - «* - | Conforming
4__| Range: 300 miles (miniuni) ~~ | 350 miles . .+ _|.Conforming _
5 | Endurance: 3 Hours (m L[nimum) 3 hours _ Conforming
6 | Service . -Celling- (Height | 14,000 feet . .| Conforming
Capability): T
14,000 Feet
| (Maximurm) . ]
7 | T/O Gross Weight: 2,600 Lbs| 2,500 Lbs Conforming
(maximum) o
8 Seating Capacity: 1Pilot + 3 pax | 1 pilot + 2 pax Conforming
i (maximum) N
9 | Ventilating System: Air- | Air-conditioned “Conforming
conditioned -
10 |Standard to  include . the | Equipped with | Conforming
Directional Gyro Above. Hgrizon | Directional .~ Gyro
with Slip Skip Indicator a_nd Above Horizon with
Vertical Compass ‘;-S!ip |
Standard Police Equ:pment' Ll
11 | Fold-down Monitor Mount "TProvided {Marshall V- | Conforming
i R1041-RH)
12 | Digltal Recorder Provided (Stealth) Conforming
13 | Searchlight, 15-20.  Million | 20 Million | Conforming
Candlepower candiepower :
. 14 | Dual Audio Controlier Provided Conforming |
15 ¢ Nine (9) Memory Channel, Cyclic | Provided (FLIR | Conforming
Grip Control System) o
16 | GPS (Moving Map, Colored) Provided {(Garmin | Conforming
- 420), moving colored, o
: map . 3
17 Transponder thh Remote Mode C | Provided - (Bendzx Conforming
Altitude Epcoder - X 2| King: KT: 76 C TS0) . -
18 | PA System and Sureh (100 watts) Provided (Wellén' \SA-*, Conforming
| 34075) 100 W .. ‘
19 | Two (2) Davnd C!ark H10 13 '3 pes. . David “Clark | Conforming
i Headsets ] Hli) 13 headsets
20 | FSI Ultra 8000 Infrared (1Dx
continuous zoom, InSB Infrared Prowded (FLIR | Conforming
Sensor and 18x Continuous Zoom | System)

_
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Monitor  10.4-inch,  Sunlight
Readable Color, LCD, Active
Matrix TFT)

21 | Extended Landing gear | Provided, Conforming

22 | Bubble Wmdows Both -"Forward“ wided Conforming
Doors )

23 | Transmit and - Intercom o Floor"” & :_.gonforming
Switches, Observer Side

24 | Observer - O\rerhead Light, Foot | Provided ; onﬁormmg
Activated ‘ X .

25 | HID Land:ng Ltghts Provided Conformmg

26 | 130-Ampere Alternator | Provided ConfOrmmg

27 | Slave System Provided Conforming _

28 | Real Time Transmission Downlink | N/A_ Not si;atel:i in the
(Optional) contract. .- -

29 | Color and Markings: : R
White with appropriate markings | Provided Conforming -
specified in NAPOLCOM Res. No. .
99-002 -dated January 5, _1999
{Approving the Standard :
and Markings for PNP ‘Motor
Vehicles, Seacraft and Aircraft)

30 | Warranty: I 4
‘The Supplier warrants any defé “Company  warrants | Conforming

in  material .
1 within  the most advantageous

and workmanship

terms and conditions in favor of
the government. :

L of

S lrom
acg_:_egtancg
: ' ‘f“Com;:iany

that the items to be
delivered are brand
new, conforms to the

.0 ’ﬂUmt With a new one

if the defective unit
could not be repaired
without impairing its
capability and

in casef

‘ shatf

NAPOLCOM approved

technical

specifications,  free

from - any

manufacturing .

defects’ of whatever |. /7"

nature and,

_defects™ noted_ e

; _;w:thin two (2) years |... |

a7 |
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usefulness. For
replacement
purposes, the PNP
.-~/ shall,., notify the
Lo Company in ,writing
7 r‘ab;)ljty - he defect:ve
“litem Wl
Simuitaneous y retum‘fﬁ

oty 4 the same
31 Requrrements. ‘
Maintenance Manual Provided wo
Operation Manual Provided Conforming

WTCD Report Number T2010-05 was signed by the members of the
mspectlon team — PSUPT. Larry D. Balmaceda, PCINSP Peter D. Ngabit Jr PCINSP
Maria Cecrle M. Vltoria, SPO3 Jorge B. Gabiana, SPO3 Ma. Linda A, Pado;mog, PO3
Avensuel G. Dy, PO3 DlOﬂlSlO ‘B. Jiffienez, PO1 Darwin S. Yap, Pol Janet p. Pante,
NUP Ruben S. Gongona, NUP Er,, ,,,R Paul- Maranan, Supervrsor of the rnspection team
— PSINSP Ronald A. Lee; Recomm
Concurrrng - Luis L. Saligumba; and 'Approvai Benjamin A. Belarmino Jr.*

ng Approval - Joel Crisestomo L. Garcra

Amrdst PNP findings that the delivered helicopters comphed with NAPOLCOM
1ssued resolutron the inspection, specrf‘cally on the two standard helrcepters was
conducted wrth several irregularities; '

Flrst the accepted helicopters were different from the ones:proposed At this
point, |t must be emphasized that the preposal from\MAPTRAi date o} flune 15, 2009
clearly |nd|cated that the he"'; thers t Y M Ware.
1370 and 1371, wrth the foltawiri

'hose with seral nos.

For helicopter with Serla NQ

» Date of Manufacture, Arrframe March 3 2004
» Aircraft Time to Date (24 Mar. 09): 367H36M

40 fd.
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¢ Date Manufactured, Engine: 27 Sep. 2003.

For helicopter with Serial No. 1371
s Date of Manufacture, Airframe: March 3, 2004
s Aircraft Time to Date (24 Mar., 09): 481H06M
e Date Manufactwed Engme 13 Navember 2&03

However, the heltcopters eventually delivered by MAPTRA bore serial numbers
1372 and 1374, The hehcoptel with Serial Number 1374 had Ionger logged flight
hours 503H12 M as of 24 March 09.% Hence, it is “more used” than the secondhand
helicopters 'initfally offered by MAPTRA to the PNP,

Second, it Is evident from WTCD R‘epori: on the two units of Robinson R44
Raven 1 Helicopter (Standard) that the requirements for air-conditioning and
endurance were not met. Despite failing to meet these requirements, the two
helicopters were still acceptejd_.i It is' noteworthy to mention that in NC Resolution No.
2009-04, one of the reasons as :to why‘the pmposél of the other bidder, Beeline,
was rejected was because the proposed heltcopters of Beeline did not have any air-

conditioners.*?

The requirement on the warranty of the hehcopter was also not met as found
in the line of questioning of Senator Serge Osmena :

SEN. OSMENA. General Verzosa, can you explain to the Committes )
whether you checked for the warranties that accompamed the-
‘purchase of the three helicopters? ¢ -

MR. VERZOSA I did riot personally check. the warrantles Your ‘
Honor But at is mcluded m the supp[y contract Your Honor :

SEN. OSMENA It 19 mcluded in the supply contract? '; ‘
MR. VERZOSA Yes, Your Honor 4
SEN. OSMERNA. Who told you 1t is mciuded :f you Clld not check? You

were buying a six-year old hehcopter, I'm sure the warranty expired
already.

1.,
*2 National Police Commission Negotiation Committee NC Resolution No. 2008-02. July 8, 2000,
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SEN. LACSON. Five years old.
SEN. OSMENA. Ah, five years old iang7 Okay

MR. VERZOSA, 1t is. forwarded to me by the B, Your Honor, the
director for Log;stxcs, and for the company, it was signed by Larry de
Vera in the- presente of General Piano and Ms Rose Jantos of
MAPTRA : e

SEN OSMENA But the warranty must be ggned by the
manufacturer, which is Robinson Helficopters. Who checked-whether )
there were warranties in effect to cover the two used helicopters?.

" MR, VERZOSA: I want to checlc it with the director for Logistics,
Your Honor.™ ‘

XXX

SEN. OSMERA; xxx By the way, General Verzosa, I just found out the
warranty on the reciprocating aircraft engine, this is only good for 24
months. So whenyou bought the helicopters, it had no engine
warranty any longer and no alrcraft warranty.*?

Third, some members of the inspection team, namely, PSUPT Claudio DS
Gaspar Jr. and PSUPT Larry D. Balmaceda admitted during the hearing that they
knew beforehand that the two standard helicopters were not brand new.®

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Okay, Colonel Gaspar, so nakita
mo ‘yong ~ at inifipad mo *yong helicopter na ibinebenta sa PNP.

MR. GASPAR. Opo.
- THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Please answer.
MR. GASPAR Opo, sir.
THE CHAIRMAN [SEN GUINGONA] Okay Branci new ba Ito o hmdl?
MR, GASPAR Hmcﬂ po, Your Honors _ _
THE CHAIRMAN [SEN GUINGQNA] Hlnd: brand e, 'J ;

B A
“f

MR. GASPAR. Hlndl Do o

3 TSN, Imbaisa VIII-2 July 28, 2011 12:37 P.M. 'pb. 1-2.
TSN, MPMendoza IX-2. July 28, 2011. 12:47 B.M, p. 2.
5 TSN. BRH Gonzales. VII-2. July 28, 2011. 30:07 A.M. p. 3
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THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Hindi brand-new.
Colonel Balmaceda, member ka ng inspection team.

MR. BALMACEDA. Pareho. kanil ni Co!onef Gaspar, sir, na nag-assist
sa mga nag- mspectron, sw DR

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN GUINGONA] So nag asszst sa mga nag inspect.
MR BALMACEDA Yes, sir,

‘THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA] Nakapirma ka sa mspectlon
report noong na-deliver 'yong heficopter?

- MR. BALMACEDA. Yes, sir.

‘ THE CHAIRMAN ISEN. GUINGONA]. Okay. Brand-new ba itong he!acopter 0.
Second-hand?

MR. BALMACEDA, Second-hand, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN. [SEN. GUINGONA] Secondhand.

Furthermore, despite knowledge that the two standard helicopters were not
brand-new, both Gaspar and Balmaceda du:! not inform their superiors of this fact. ¥
When asked why they did not rnform therr superiors that the helicopters were not
brand-new, Gaspar mentioned that their participation in the inspection was to assist
the inépeqtion committee and not to inspect the helicopters.”

Fodrfh_, the WTCD Réport was dated Octbber 16, 2009. Gaspaff!, however,
admitted thlat“he only signed the WTCD Report on October 23, 2009.*® Furthermore,
when Gaspar was asked to sign the WTCD Report, it was already signed by Joel
Crisostomo GarCIa, attested by st Sahgumba, and noted by Ronald Roderos.* In

the words of Senator Dn!on

TSN Mhulep ITI-2 Aug. 2, 2011, 12:12 P.M, pp. 7-9 and TSN RIOrtiz IV-2 August 2, 2011. 12:22
PM. p 1.

“"M.R. Catadman I-2 August 25,2011 11:57 A.M.

8 TSN Ctsotto XI-1 August 11, 2011, 10:57 A.M. p. 8.

* TSN Crsotto XI-1 August 11, 2011, 10:57 A.M. p.1G.

0 TSN RP Alger XII-1. August 11, 2011 11:07 AM. p. 1
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Again, this shows how anomalous this deal was. Before the
ingpection team could even approve the condition of the helicopter,
huh, the recommendation is already approved by the pertinent
authorities....

Fifth, by their own adm1531on, thr o ‘f ch fo '-'*rmembers of the NHQ-PNP
Inspection and Acceptanc :E‘.,;,C”ommlttee ~ Police "Chie""?|Supe=rmtendent George Q.
Piano, Police Semor Supenntendent Luis L. Saligumba, Poitce_‘Semor .Superintendent
Job Nolan D, Antomo - who signed the Resolution acceptmg»‘the’two standard
helicopters chd not personally inspect the helicopters, The cane member who
attended the mspection ~— Police Senior Superintendent Edgar B. Paatgq - admitted

that hez‘Wa»s‘."nbt qualified to determine if the helicopters were brand~nexﬁ"§rf’}n5i‘;.51

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Okay. General Piana, there is
this report, inspectibn and acceptance ~ Ibig sabihin ng acceptance
eh pagtatanggap ~ November 11, signed by .yours truly, George
Piano, Police Chief Sii |;mtendent Luis - Saligumba, Job MNolan
Antonio and Edgat Paat . You said you were not there when you
inspected the unit, am I correct'? :

MR, PIANC. You are correci;,, anor.

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Okay. Pofice Senior
Superintendent Saligumba, you said you were not there when it was
inspected, am I correct? Please speak in the microphone, please.

MR. SALIGUMBA, Yes, sir.

' THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. And yet you Slgned the report? e
. . Please answer verbally? AT

B MR SALIGUMBA Yes, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN {SEN GUINGONA] Senior Supenntenden Antienlo,
AE were you present when thrs Inspect:on was made? K

THE CHAIRMAN LSEN ‘umeomsx] vauwe’f" not presentéaiso?

MR. ANTONIO. Yesf"

yias h.otfpr;ésgﬁtg sin T

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN, GUINGONAT. But you signed the document?

*LTSN. L. Sapida. I-2. July 28, 2011. 11:27 A.M. pp. 1-3.
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MR, ANTONIO. Yes, sir.
THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONAL The acceptance?
MR. ANTONIO. Yes slr,.

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN GUINGONA] Inspection and acceptance.
General Plano, do you deny ‘that you- s:gned thus dm:ument’>

MR PIANO stgned it, Your Honor,

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. Thank you,
Semor Superintendent Paatan, were you present during the mspectlon? :

MR. PAATAN, Yes, Mr, Chairman.
"THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONA]. And you signed this inspection?
MR. PAATAN. Yes, sir,

THE CHAIRMAN [SEN. GUINGONAL One, two, three, four. Four PNP
Officers were supposed to inspect, yet only ane actually inspected,
but all those signed. And kanino po, Senior Superintendent Paatan,
sinabi N'yo sa amin na wala kang kakayahan na malaman kung luma
0 bage?

MR. PAATAN. Yes, Mr. Chairran,

Sixth, the chairman of the Insbection and Acceptance Committee, Police Chief
Superintendent George Q. Piano failed to exercise due diligence. Plano admitted that
he did not see it as part of his duly to check the regxstratlon of the. delivered

hehcopters He was castigated by Senator Drilon on this matter:>

1 am sorry, but you are not believable insofar as this point is concér‘ned,
General. Wala pong naniniwala sa inyo. And a reasonable . mind. will not
accept that you were exercising due dlltgence when you‘dld not check the

registration, If you checked the basic dceument you, wouici have seen that
these hehcopters wers in the name of Lfonair ot in. the name of MAPTRA,

RSN

Piano a!so fauled to venfy wuth the mSpectfon team lf the two standard
helicopters were indeed brand- new or notg‘ Furthermare when asked why Piano
accepted the helicopters when it was clear that the helicopters did not comply with

2 TSN RPAlger XII-1 August 11,2011 11:07 A. M. p. 3.
> Id. at pp.3-4.
4 TSN RIOrtiz IV-2 August 2, 2011 12:22 P.M. p. 2.

Page 42 of 60



the specifications on endurance and air-conditioned, Piano tried to excuse himself by
saying that the Inspection and Acceptance Commitiee relied on the memorandum
that was submitted to them that the two hehcapters were conforming to NAPOLCOM
specifications and that is why they affi xed thelr SIgnature »

It seems that Riéhé se’és: his role as Chair of th‘eé‘I‘hs‘éecfibﬁ'and Acceptance
Comrnittee as a “me’fe rubberstamp.” From his argument, once the mspectmn team
states that the equment complies with NAPOLCOM specifi cat:ons sald equipment
should a}heady be accepted. Clearly, Piano would like to pass on the fiab‘mty of the
Inspection aﬁd Acceptance Committee to somebody else.

Seventh, no less than current PNP Chief Raul M. Bacalzo admitted fhat of the
members of the inspection team the only competent officers who could determine
the quality or the type of equ:pment that PNP was buymg were the two pilots —
Gaspar and Balmaceda,™® Gaspar and Balmaceda however, had always mentioned

that their participation in the mspection Was to assist the members of the lns;aecuon
team only.>”

Last, but not the least, the Commission on Audit (COA) was not present when
the inspection on the two standard helicopters was made on September‘ 24, 2009.
COA Auditor Jaime Sanares explained that as a general rule, upon acceggj‘tance of the
agency, the designated technical inspectors of the COA will handle the ins;\)\éc’tlon.58
There are i'nstahﬁc‘:es,‘-:however, to speed up the process‘,‘stt_}gt‘“.QQA will inspect
together with ‘PNP. During th'gi?ihspect;iq;ﬁ:;ﬁ "che,;_‘_cyﬁif.“r2 standard s_ﬁ_é¥i§0;$te%s, however,

> TSN Mhulep VIII-1 August 11, 2011 10: 27 A, M D 2
*® TSN JADela Cruz August 11, 2011 10:07 A, p. 3.

TSN Ctsotto XI-1 August 11, 2011. 10:57 A.M, p. 7; M.R. Catadman 1-2 August 25,2011 11:57
AM,

> TSN RPAlger XII-1 August 11, 2011 11:07 A. M. p. 7.
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COA was not part of the team.” COA was asked by MAPTRA President Mr. De Vera
to inspect the two standard helicopters only in December.®

PAYMENT

In the origihai Supply Contract, MAPTRA was to bé’p‘ai:dtﬁe amount of One
Hundred Four Miilio‘n‘ Nine Hundred Eighty-Five T‘hous.and - Pesos  (Php
104,985,000.00) right after the final acceptance of the items.5! Atticle 1V of the
Supply Contract specifically stated that “partial payment for partlal'deli}{ery is not
allowed.”? * |

On September 4, 2009, however, MAPTRA President Larry De Vera wrote to
PNP Chief Jesus A. Verzosa thru PDDG Jefferson P; soriano, the Chairman of the
NHQ Bids and Awards Comihitteé ‘ :‘éi]uesting for “contract amendment by allowing
use claim partial payment upon the delivery and ﬁna! acceptance of the two (2)
standard LPOHs.”? Mr. De Vera wi ote that Robinson Helicopter Committee asked for
the remittance of the amount of at least fi ifty percent (50%) of the contract as a
precoridltlon for the shipment of the fully equipped LPOH.5* Mr. De Vera explained
that “due to the numerous commitments of our company both in and out of the

government, we are not in a position to accede to the condition of our pri\rjc:ipal."55

NHPNP BAC then issued Resolution No. 2009-70 stating that “the amendment
of the Supply Contract as requested by MAPTRA will not be 1njunous to the PNP nor
place the PNP in @ d:sadvantageous pos:t;on because parttal payment could only be

59]d
60 Id B ¥ e . 2
1 Supply Contract bLtween the thppme National - Pahce ancl Mamla Aerospace Products Trading
Corporation for the procurement-of one; (1) fully equlpped and two (2) standards Light Police
Operat:onal Helicopter for use of the Air Unit of the PNP Spécial Action Force. July 23, Z009.

2 Id,
® Letter of Mr. Larry B. De Vera, President of Manila Aerospace Products Trading to PNP Chief Jesus
A, Verzosa. September 4, 2009.
64 [C/.
6% Id
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made upon a determination that partial performance acceptable to the PNP has been
made and the same shall always be in conformity with existing accounting and
auditing rules and regulations.”® PDDG Jefferson P. Soriano then wrote a Memo to
the PNP Chief recommendmg the approval of the Supplemental Contract between
PWmmmwm” IR el :

On Nov, 9, 2009, the Supplemental Contract was ah];m;_}édlwhgrein “partial
payment for partiél delivery is allowed: proifided, that the two '(2),'\stanclard Light
Police Operational Helicopters shall be delivered within the delivery ﬁcriod of sixty
(60) calendar ﬁays mentioned in Paragraph 2, Article 111 of the main Sup’p{y Contract
and provided further, that the claim for partial payment shall only be éqyivalent to
fifty percent (50%) of the total contract price.”*® The Supplemental Contract was
signed by: Atty. Jefferson Sonano Ben]am A. Beiarmlno, Romeo C. Hllomen Atty.
Herold Ubaide and Leocadio SC Santtago % It was aiso approved by Chief PNP Jesus
A. Verzosa.”

.Oﬁ Nav, 10, 2009, Dlsbursementﬂonuche'r for the partial delivery of St;andard
Light Police Operational Helicopter in the amount of Fifty Two Million Four Hundred
Ninety Two Thousand Five Hundred Pesos (Php 52,492,500.00) was issugcil.’l Less
taxes, Forty Nine Million, Six Hundred Eighty Thousand Four Hundrecl On_e'_’ Pesos and
Eighty Centavos (Php 49,680,401.80) was received by MAPTRA on Dgcember 17,
2009.”

5 Resolution No, 2009-70 Recommendmg The Amendment ofthe Supp[y Contract Between The PNP
and Manila Aerospace Products Trading Corporation For The Delivery of One (1) Fully Equipped and
Two (2) Standard Light Police Operationat Heilcopters For Usa Of The PNP Special Action Force.

* Memorandum on the Supplemental Contract for the Dehvery of Light Police Operational Helicopters.
Date not provided. Approved on November 7, 2009.-

:: Supplemental Supply Contract. Article I, “Acceptance and Payment.” Navember 9, 2009.

70 §g;

7* Disbursemeat Voucher No. PNPDV#0O(M)-101109-019. November 10, 2009.

72 Manila Aerospace Products Trading Official Receipt No. 1280. December 17, 2009.
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Cn March 9, 2010, the Disbursement Voucher for the complete delivery of
one (1) unit Fully Equipped Light Police Operational Helicopter in the amount of Fifty
Two Million Four Hundred Ninety Two- Thousand F:ve Hundred Pesos (Php 52,492,
500.00) was issued.” Less taxes Forty Nme Mnlgon, Six. Hundred Eighty Thousand
Four Hundred One Pesos and Elghty Centavos (Php 49 680 401 80) was received by
MAPTRA on April 13 2010. 7 Thus, MAPTRA received a total of One Hundred Four
Million Nine. Hundred Eighty Five Thousand Pesos (Php 104, 985 DOD 00) from PNP
for one fully—eqmpped helicopter and two standard hehcopters Sald amount can
further be broken down as foliows: One unit police equipped R44 11 Police Hehcopter
- Forty Two Million Three Hundred Twelve Thousand Nine Hundred Th;rteen Pesos
and. Ten Centavos {Php 42,312,913.10); Two Umts R44 I Standard nght Police
Operational Helicopter - Sixty Two Million Six Hundred Seventy Two Thousand Eighty
Six Pesos and Ninety Centavos (Php 62,672,086. 90) or Thirty One Mlllion Three
Hundred Thirty Six Thousand hdrty Three Pesos and Forty Five Centavos (Php
31,336,043.45) per unit.”® Durmg the course of the hearings, it was established that
Mr. De Vera gave the money received from PNP to Mr. Po and Mr. Po then gave the
money to Mr. Mike Arroyo.” The amount of $700,000,” in cash, was given to Mr,
Arroyd in payment for the helicopters.”

Considering that the original price of One Hundred Five Million Pesos (Php
105,000,000.00) was meant to cover three brand new 1’1,1Hynequip;::ed‘f_gelicopters,79
the mere fact that the Php 105,000,000.00 was later amended (durir’fg deg'ofiatidn)
to cover one brand -new fuily—equnpped helicopter and two standard helicopters
meant loss on the part of the govemment already ThiS loss was further aggravated
by the fact that What were bought by. the \PNP were not two brand -new standard

73 Disbursement Voucher No PNP DV#O(M}*UOZ:[U 037, March 9 2910
™ Manila Aerospace Products Trading Official Receipt No. 1305 Apnl 13, 2010.
’® Sales Invoice of MAPTRA No. 1692. September 24 2009
"5 TSN RPAlger X-1 August 2, 2011 10:52°AM. p. 2" -
7 At P45.00 to $1.00, equivalent to Thirty One M;lllon and Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (P31.5
l\gilllr?n) TSN JADela Cruz IX-2 August 2, 2011 1:12 PM. p. 1,
I

7 Invitation to Apply for Eligibility to Bid, Appraved Budget for 3 Units Light Operational Helicopter is
P105,000,000.00. Published in the Philippine Star on August 1, 2008.
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helicopters but two second-hand helicopters. Notwithstanding the fact that the three
helicopters were bought for Php 104,985,000.00, PNP still suffered a major loss on

this transaction. Senator Lacson t\;ighilight_e‘d\ _PNR’S loss on the transaction:*

SEN. LACSON Mr Chaii’, -isa pai pong punto, ipapakita Jang sa
screen, research din*po ito ni Senator Drilon.'Sa PNP, kung noong
2008 ang bmllr nilyo was Raven 11, instead of Raven I na brand-new,
ipapakita po sa ihyo kung magkano “yung presyo, P19 million; brarnd-
new Raven II, ang ibig sabihin daw po ng Raven II may mga-

. nakaabang na para maging fully equipped, at iyun po ay brand ew |
- pero ang hinlli ninyo secondhand na, Raven I pa, ay 31 m:lhon .
Papaano po ninyo iHa-justify iyon sa mga imbestigador, sa .

Ombudsman o sa Sandrganbayan na ganoon ang inyong bimili?

Anybody from the PNP, 19 million Raven II, pwedeng i-upgrade
nang maging fully equipped; ‘yung Raven I, talagang pampasahero
na lamang iyon, hindi na puwedeng i-upgrade, talagang standard
pero 31 million against 19 million na bago na, upgraded pa.

IV. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS -~

Through the course of hearihgjé, the following were found and discoye»red by
the Commitiee:

1. Through several documentary and testimonial evidence, it appears that
former First Gentleman Jose Miguel Arroyo (FG) is the real owner of the
used helicopters sold to the PNP,

2. Pnor to the sale to the PNP, dlfferent members of the former First Family,
repeatedly used the hehcopters for vanous trtps N

3. These hehcopters were bought by the PNP desptte violations of muiltiple
rules of pr ocurement.

% TSN MHBalagne XI-2 August 25, 2011 1:37 P.M. pp. 2-3.
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4, These helicopters were accepted by the PNP despite prior and clear
knowledge that they did not even comply with the technical requirements
of the PNP, and were not.-even brand-new as required by the Supply
Contract. Lt e

5. Part of the payment of the PNP was, as narrated by Archlbald Po, turned
over to the real owner, former First Gentleman Jose Miguel Arroyo

V. DISCUSSION OF LIABILITIES

Persons Liable

The Blue Ribbon \(Zoﬁr‘r\ﬁ&ee asserts -that the following public
officialsfemployees and prwate 1ndwldual for acting in conspiracy with each ather,
should be charged by the Office of Ombudsman for violations of Section 3(e) and
(g) of the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act, the reasons thereof are discussed in

the next section:

» Jose Miguel Arroyo, owner of the second-hand helicopters sold to the
PNP as brand-new
« Ronaldo Puno, former Secretary of the DILG and‘y Chairman of
© NAPOLCOM :

e ' Jesus A Versoza, former Pehce Dlrectar General Ph:hppme National
'Ponce ‘ ' :

It must be noted that Arch;bald Po and Hi!ano de Vera have applied for the
Witness Protection Program. FEEEIS L
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Members of the NAPOLCOM QOversight Committee

o Commissioner Mlguel G. Coronei
s Assistant Secretary Oscar E. Va!enzue}a"'f
» Director ,\Lonrad\o.;.L! Sumanga, Jr.

Members of the PNP_Negotiation Compmittee

« * PDIR Luizo Cristobal Ticman

« PDIR Ronald Dulay Roderos

» PDIR Romeo Capacillo Hilomen

e PDIR Leocadio Salva Cruz Santiago Jr.

Legal Officer _of the Bids ang Amards Comm:ttee wha were present in the

Nec;oLatlon Conference

e PSUPT Ermilando Villafuerte
¢ PSUPT Roman E. Loreto

Members of the Bids and Awards Committee who signed Resolution No. 2009-36
affirming the recommendation of the Negotiation Compmittee to award the contract

to MAPTRA:

» PDG Jefferson Pattaw Soriang - o
. PDIR Lurzo Crlstobai Tieman *

» PDIR Ronald Dulay Roderos B

e PDIR Leocadm Salva Cruz Santmgq Jr

s PCSUPT Herold G. Ubalde - '
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Members of the Inspection and Acceptance Committee who ruled that the

helicopters should be accepted for use by the PNP as indicated in Resolution IAC-09-
045

e PCSUPT Luis Luan.a Sahgumba
. PSSUPT Job Nelan D. Antonio
o PSSUP'I Edgar Bawayan Paatan
® PDRI.George Quinto Piano

Likewise charged is PSSUPT Crisostomo DL Garcia, who signed WTCD Report
Number T2009-04 A with the notation "RECOMMENDED APPROVAL”

The Committee believes that the acts and omissions committed in this case
clearly show a conspiracy amohg and between each actor. Each one of them, at any
patticular stage of the procurement had the opportunity to stop this anomalous
tran::actton Unfortunately, none of them Found it proper to follow the law.

Conspiracy exists when two or more personé come to an agreement
concerning the commission of a felony and decide to commit it. It is well ehtrenched
in our‘ jurisprudence® that cénspiracy need not be proved by direct evidence Proof
of previous agreement to commit the crime is nhot essential to estabhsh consplracy
Conspiracy may be inferred from the acts of the accused, whose ccrnduct before,
during and after commtssmn of the crime can show its emstence When all the
accused by their acts almed at the same ob1ect one performmg one part and the
other performmg another part so asto comptete lt Wfth a. v:ew to the attainment of
the same object, and the:r acts though apparently mdependent were in fact

81 See People vs. Lingasa, et. al., GR No 192187, December 13, 2010; People v. Relos, 5r., GR No.

189326, November 24, 2010, Heirs of the late Nestor Tria vs. Obias, GR No. 175887, November 24,
2010,
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concerted and cooperative, indicating closeness of personal association, concerted

action, there is conspiracy.

Violations of Anti-Graft and CorruptPraeffceaAct g U

The mdav;duals named above are liable for woiatmg sections 3(&) and (g) of
Republic Act 3019 whlch provide: PR

S‘ectim 2. Corrupt practices of public officers, — In addition to acts or - -
omissions of public officers already penalized by existing law, the following
shall constitute corrupt practices of any public officer and are hereby
declared to be untawful:
. 200

(e} Causing any undue injury to any party, including the Government, or

~ giving any private party any unwarranted benefits, advantage or preference
in the discharge of his official administrative or judicial functions through
ranifest partiality, evident bad.faith or gross inexcusable negligence. This
provision shall apply to officers and employees of offices or government
corporations charged with the grant of licenses or permits or other
CONCESSIoNns.

(9) Entering, on behalf of the Government, into any contract or transaction

manifestly and grossly disadvantageous to the same, whether or not the

public officer profited or will profit thereby.

All the foregoing individuals in violation of their sworn duty to protect the
interest of the Republic, whose acts have shown not only badges of extreme bad
faith but also gross inexcusable negligence, should be Lharged with graft

In the hearmgs of the Blue Rlbbon Commxttee it was def‘ mteiy estabhshed
that the hehcopters deilyered to and pa:d fer by the PNP were second-hand
helicopters and this’ matter was ﬂever contested or’ demed by any of the resource

persons. As a result, the acts of alt, those mvoiveci m the transaction have clearly
disadvantaged the government T c. 2 RS
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In the present case, Jose Miguel Arroyo, Archibald Po, Hilario de Vera, the
PNP officials, the Chairman and members of the BAC, the Chairman and members of
the negotiating team, the Chief of -the LPNP, and the then Secretary of the
Department of Interior and l.ocal Government consplred and confederated together,
cooperated with one another, takmg advantage of. thetr off“ czal position in defrauding
the government the amount of Php 62,672,086.90 (the pnt:e paad for the two used
helicopters) by recommendmg and approving the acquisition by the PNP of two
helicopters represented as brand new, knowing fuliy-well that satd two helicopters
were second- hand and pre-owned to the prejudice and damage of the government
and the PNP in the amount of Php 62,672,086.90 (the price paid for the two used
hehcopters), and facilitating the PNP’s acceptance of the same. Mr. Po and Mr de
Vera have sought to be covered by the Witness Protection Program.

- Moreover, the former F:rst :éentleman Jose Mﬁiguel Arroyo should also be
charged under Section 4 of RA, 381\9 for taking advéntage of his relationship with
then PreSIdent Gloria Macapagal K royo to be abile to have these hehcopters sold to
the Phlffppfne National Police, for the c!rrumstances of the sale show that the PNP

would not have bought the second-hand hellcopters if rot for his influence peddiing.

Section 4 of RA 3019 provides:

Section 4. Prohibition on private individuals. — (a) it shall - -
be unlawiul for any person_having family or close personai
relation with any public official to sapitalize or expioit of r take

. dvantage of such family or close personal relation by
directly or. indlreotiy requesting or receiving” any present gift.or -
material .or pecuniary aduantage from -any. other’ persen'
having some business, \tr’ansactlon, application, request. or
contract with thé- govemment -in which such public official
has té.interveng. Family relation shall. inélyde the spouse or
relatives by coheanguimty or afflmty in the third. civil degree.
The word "cigse’ personal relation shall- mch.lde close personal
friendship, social and_‘fraternal connections, and professional
employment all giving rise to intimacy which assures free access
to such public officer.
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(b) It shall be unlawful for any person knowingly io induce or
cause any public official to corvimit any of the offenses defined in
Section 3 hereof. {(smphasis supplied)

Clearly, facts show that it |s__the unseen hand of the First Gentleman with the
ecretary of the DILG and members of the PNP
that the helicopter deai came mtro fruition.

indispensable Looperatlon of the

ﬁ--..

Violations of the Government Procurement Reform Act

The members of the Negotiation Committee and the Bids h'a‘nt:l Awards
Committee,‘ and Jesus Versoza who approved the Supply Contract, sﬁouid“aiso be
charged ftjr violating the provisions of the Government Procurement Reform Act,
section 48 (e), in refation to sét:tion 53. Tt is clear the acts of those mentioned above
resulted to the award of the: contract to a suppher which was not f’nancxaiiy, legally,
and techn:cally capable. i

" Article XVI, section 48 (e),‘i: ofthe t)roctnrement law allows for negotiated
procurement and defines -this as “a method of procurement that may be resortéd
under extraardinary circumstances provided for in section 53 of this Act and other
instances that shall be specified in the IRR, where the Procuring Enttty dlrectfy
negotiates a contract with a technically, legally and financially capab!e suppher
contractor or consu]tant "

In the dnscussmn of the ﬁndings of thlS Com mlttee, lt is ciearly explamed why
MAPTRA, the, corporatnon d!d not possess the ellgiblhty requured by law. In
summary: = ‘ : P

e As a corporation, it was not engaged in the business of sefling helicopters.
» It was not a PNP Certified supplier at the time of the negotiation and
award.
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« [ts paid-up capital was not even sufficient to pay for the performance

security bond required by the Supply Contract,

It must be noted.- that the Squly Contract was entered into by Manila
Aerospace Trading ¢ orporatlon Mr. Ticman in- his Aft" davrt dated September 14,
2011 (Annex T) attempted to convince the Committee that the PNP was dealing with
a financially capable suppher because it supposedly had sufﬁcaent assets based on its
financial records Unfortunatety for Mr. Ticman, his own supporting document
becomes a reason for the fall of his own defense because the document clearly
states that(jt. Was for Manila Aerospace Products Trading, a sole Dropriétgrshiﬂ. It is
mind-boggling why Mr, Ticman would use a document that is clearly bréjudicia! to
his own claims.

Mr. Ticman, in his Af‘ﬁci‘avtth \f’inally hanc_:js himself because he aiso admitted
that mdeed the PNP awarded. the contract to an entaty different from the entity they
were negotiatmg with. He admits’ very c!eariy that he did not read the entire contract
with great attention. Treating this procurement process as if it was a street corner
buy and sell, Mr. Ticman admits his own clear. violation of law:

The Supply Contract signed with MAPTRA as corporation was
something I was _ahle t¢ find out belatedly, in fact just -
‘recently. When the Supply Contract was presented to me then for.” .
. signing, the immediate focus of my attention was on the terms and .-
- conditions. Honestly, since the name as sole proprietorship -
and_asg cgrnaragian Es ;he same, with the exception of
i r MAPTRA the d:ﬁeJce was X

: ‘b_grdlx gottgeable (Emphas:s supplrecl)

The shockmg admlssions of wolatlons of iaw contlnues in Mr. Ticman's
affidavit when he noted that “MAPTRA submltted eltgtblhty documents on June 15,
2009 as DTI registerad company nﬁt a cc)rporatnon 50 the Negotiation Committee
was not even aware that time it registered itself as a corporation. It necessarily

follows that the Committee was not also aware of its capitalization of only
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Php312,000. This admission becomes distinctly disastrous for My, Ticman because
he was the one who signed the Supply Contract with MAPTRA, the corporation. Due
diligence on his part would have entaned the need to ask for MAPTRA's Certlﬁcate
and Articles of Incorporatlon Agasn, this obwousiy was not done

Lastly, we urge the Ombudsman to further investrgate the pass:bfe criminal
liabilities of Iggy Arroyo arising from his attempt to cover up Mike Arroyo’s
ownership and partlapatlon in this anomalous transaction. -

Vi. ﬁOLICYI LEGISLATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

In aid of fegislation, the Blue Ribbon Commfttee has the duty to investigate
malfeasance misfeasance and nonfeasance in office by officers and employees of
the government. ‘ ‘

The hearings on the anoma!oué sale of used helicopters to the Philippine
National Police revealed that the problem was not primarily because the laws where
lacking or insufficient but because, despite the many safeguards set in the law,
public officials and private individuals found ways to violate them.

The Blue Ribbon Comimittee takes this moment to remembér tﬁ)ét' tﬁéj duty of
Congress is. nol: to. craft pt‘;-rfect laws that can never be vnolated but to craft laws that
serve the mterest and/or respond to the needs of the peaple Wh:le it cannot

completely legislate aga!nst determlned vjolators of iaws it can however ensure that
for those who vuolate the laws of ‘the. land, accountabsht;es e:an be extracted and
commensurate penalties be metecl out Far these reascns the Commlttee puts
forward the following ieglslatwe/mhcy recommendatfons
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1. Increase the penalties imposed in the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act

For violations of Sectzons 3 4 5 and_ﬁ of this law, the current penalties

include imprisonment for not Iess than sm Jr,;'ears and one month nor more than
fifteen years, perpetual dssquahfcation from pubhc aﬁ'" ce and confiscation or
forfeiture in favor of the Govemment of any prohlblted mterest and unexplained
wealth mamfestly eut of proportion to his salary and other lawful mcome

Sect'ion“:3' provides for a list of the punishable corrupt pféé’ti‘cés, of pubtic
officers. Section 4 mandates a prohibition on private individuals and Section 5
provides for a prohibition on certain relatives. '

The penalties should b'efchan_ged to include imprisonment for not :less‘ than
twelve years and one day.. Whule Jnot an afbsolu’ﬁe solution against determined
violators of law, the increase m penalty IS an assertlon of this Committee's stand that
graft and corruption should be more: strmgently addressed. '

2. Increase the prescription period of offenses In the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices
Act

Section 11 of the law should be amended and the prescription of affenses
should be changed from fifteen to twenty years. There is a need to ensure that the
reach of the law cannot be barred by the mere Iapse of hme

3. Provide that thg rlqhtofthe "Stéie‘té réédvef ﬁrdn'ei'tiéisj unlawfui!v acquired should
not be barred by the passacie of tifie, or by any other refated reason.

N L
f '
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Similar to Section 6% of the Plunder Law, the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices
Act should provide that the right of the State to recover properties unlawfully
acquired, or the value thereof, by public officers fram them or from their nominees or

transferees shall not be barred by prescription, laches; or estoppel.

4. Expand the list of offenses listed in the Government Pr‘ptur@::n}égﬁr Reform Act.

It is observed that there is a need for the current procurement law in the
country to mclude in its focus, the stages after bidding and/or negotlatlon and
award of the contract. It is important that delivery and acceptance should be
regulated as well, With this proposed expanded focus, the Government Procurement
Reform Act should include the following offenses:

a. Approving a contracf w;tha bidder that'Is not legally, technically, and

financially capable of entertng into a contract;

. b. Delivering, and accepting goo\ds; f.ﬁroducts, and services which are
different from those approved by the appropriate bids and awards and/or
negotiation committee and reflected in the resulting Supply Contragt;

~ For this proposal, the 8lue Ribbon Committee believes that_prejg’dice to
the government does not only happen when a procuring enti)tyi awards the
contract’ to an unqualified supplier, contractor, and/cr consu!tant The
greater prejudlce anses when the g0vernment does nat receave the goods,
prO]ects, ancl/or SEI’VICES fhat, tt pald for. As in the case of the anomalous
choppers procurement even - rf MAPTRA was a quahﬂed supplier, the

government wouid strik hdve been prejudlced precrsely because the

52 Prescription of Crimes- The crime punishable under this Act shall prescribe in twenty vears,
Howvever, th_e right of the State to recover properties unfawfidly acquired by public officers from them
or from their nominees or transferees shail not be parred by prescription, faches, or estoppels.
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choppers delivered were contrary to the contractually promised brand-new
goods.,

Acts and omlsswns m the pmcess Uf delwery and acceptance should thus
be penahzed :f these rnclude among others, “ghost dehverses under-
delivery,. or dellvery of inferior quality matenals " In infrastructure
prO]ECtS, the 1rregu1arltles may consist in the use of sub~9tandard materials
belng used and reporting unfinished projects, or even non-existing
structures as complete. There can be many more opportunities to subvert
the :process: When the procuring agency has to certify that the delivered
géods or completed infrastructure proj_ec?; conforms to the cont?a'ct, there
~may be instances  of outright bribery of senior agency officials in
~ connivance with prqturemgnt inspectors.® '

5. Erocurement laws should reqmre entlties {0 estabhsh and make known the

process and corresponding accouhtabmhes in relatron to stages other than bidding
and/or negotiations.

F'irs‘t, each procuremént entity should release and publish the process and
procedures by which it establ\ishes.standards, priorities, and terms of refgfénée. This
should‘inci‘ude clear guidelines as to the pracess for changing and amending these
same standards, pnorst:es and terms of reference. Aside from the. process, the
procuring entlty must cleariy identify the recommendmg and appre\nng authorities
for decisions lnvolvmg Jpec:F cahons, prtorltles and/or terms of reference

Pubtic ofﬁcers and prwate mduvudua!s must be penanzed should they be found
guilty of mampulatmg these standards to favour spec:f“c suppliers, consultants,
and/or contractors. It is not enough For them 6 be penalized under the Anti-Graft

and Corrupt Practices Act. The mere act of changing speoﬁcattons, priorities, and/or

% Ursal, Sofronio B. (2004). “Government Procurement Tool Kit (pp. 303-304). Quezon City: Good
Governance Books.
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terms of reference, in breach of established guidelines must be a separate and

punishable act.

Second, while 1t may be a matter of c:ommon sense, this Commitiee
nevertheless takes thls moment to lemmd the PNP and every government agency
that procures and accepts goods infrastructure pro;ects, and serwces to observe
due drhgence i the performance of their duties. They must remember the following:

A. The. Btds"end Awards Committee and/or Negotiation Team mu;st ensure that
the ‘e!ig'tbility documents submitted by the supplier, contractor, or consultant
reﬁect the very entity that the office is entering into a contract with; in the
case of the anomalous sale, it was clear that the PNP dealt with a corporation,
one with a different Iegai personahty and hablhty, but the eligibility docurnents
submitted to them were that of a sole propnetorshap

B, The relevant committees in the procurement process, from the initial stages

* until the final acceptance of the goods infrastructure project, or consulting
services, should have a member/s who are technically capable in relation to
the contract/bid being assessed. This rﬁember should have a decision-making
authority, rather than a mere recommendatory authority and should be
eque!iy liable for acts or omissions in violation of law. During the course of
this particular investigation, it was obvious that the ofﬁcia!éf Were simply
. relying on the defense *T am not .technically capable of asses,,mg these
hehcopters I lust depended on the recommendatlon of the techmcal group.”

C. The Inspectiorf[Acceptance Commrttee should be gwen the Supply Contract
and the NAPOLCOM: specif‘ catzons upon which they should based their report.
In this PNP case, some membess of the Inspectlon/Acceptance Committee
were stubborn in their opinion that their only job was to ensure that the
goods were in accordance with NAPOLCOM specifications. They admitted that
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they just assumed that the goods were brand-new, but they were clear in
their testimony that they did not know if the Supply Contract itself required

brand-new goods.

6. Passage of the lfrgec{dm‘\@f}_}f{}f&r‘rﬁ‘aticn‘ law Ly

Frnaily, th:s Commrttee pushes for the passage of the Freedom of Information
bill to give def‘ nrte clear, and implementable standards for concerned citizens and
groups, to have access to critical information, like those related to tha procurement
of goods, i‘nzfréstructure projects, and consuiting services by the governmgnt.cwmle
the chrrertt pracurement law allows NGOs and other citizen observers tc;nbe present
in various stages of the procurement process, the value of their participation can
only truly be given meamng if this is gurded by accurate and relevant information
which is made reasonably avarlab!e to them by gt)vernment

CLOSING NOTES

The Blue Ribbon Committee calls for immediate action against every person
invoivéd' in this anomalous transaction. In fulfilling its mandate to "__irryestigate
malfeasance, . misfeasance, and non-feasance in office by public bfﬁcers and
employees, it seeks to likewise empower each citizen to take stepé ag’é_a’inst’ graft and
corruption.. A natron of integrity is not made up of citizens; who sit in a corner,
fearfut, heipless or apathetrc about the condrtrgn of the State In subrmttrng this
Report, this Committee fuiﬁIS* Its mandate and puts forward its deslre of a truly
transparent and accountable state and peop!e ; N

Page 60 of 60



4

~ a1

joa]

10

il

13

14

15

L eva e

“RGIO R. OSMENA 1l

AQUILIND PIMENTEL Il

A:zf vwv)VJ “ .

Respe

ctiuliy Submitted:

.Y 'Chairman:

GCommittee on A 7
igatéons.(Bfue Ribbon) |

and

Members:

AT

ANTONIO “SONNY” F.-T

RILLANES IV

L
PA}%F/“I( cﬂin./ﬁésw
|

g Qe c‘cwwmfj QP utacin
RANKLIN M. DE’JLON

FRANCIS “CHIZ” G. ESCUDERC



8 GREGORIO B. HONASAN I -

10

13

12 RAMON “BONG” REVILLA JR. . -

13
14
15
16 EDGARDO J. ANGARA
17
18

19

3 . .
4 COMPANERA PIA S. CAYETANO

© WMIRIAM DEFENSOR-SANTIAGO

JOKER P. ARROYO

LOREN B. LEGARDA

MANNY VILLAR

20 . ExOfficioMembers, .

21

22

23
DY EJERCITO

ESTRADA |

esident Pro-Tempore
26

VICENTE C. SOTTO Il
Majority Floor Leader



[ T S

10
11
12
13

ALAN PETER “COMPANERO” §. CAYETANO
- Minority Floor Leader . -

HON. JUAN PONCE ENRILE
President. ‘

Senate of the Philippines

Pasay City



	00000001
	00000002
	00000003
	00000004
	00000005
	00000006
	00000007
	00000008
	00000009
	00000010
	00000011
	00000012
	00000013
	00000014
	00000015
	00000016
	00000017
	00000018
	00000019
	00000020
	00000021
	00000022
	00000023
	00000024
	00000025
	00000026
	00000027
	00000028
	00000029
	00000030
	00000031
	00000032
	00000033
	00000034
	00000035
	00000036
	00000037
	00000038
	00000039
	00000040
	00000041
	00000042
	00000043
	00000044
	00000045
	00000046
	00000047
	00000048
	00000049
	00000050
	00000051
	00000052
	00000053
	00000054
	00000055
	00000056
	00000057
	00000058
	00000059
	00000060
	00000061
	00000062
	00000063

